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Sub: Notice of the 20th Annual General Meeting and Annual Report 2018 

BSE Limited 
Corporate Relationship Department, 
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Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mutnbai - 400 001. 

BSE Scrip Code: 532756 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Corporate Relationship Department, 
Exchange Plaza, 5'11 Floor, 
Plot No. C/1, G Block, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), 
Mumbai - 400 051. 

NSE Scrip Code: MAHINDCIE 

We wish to inform that, the 20th Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of Mahindra CIE Automotive 
Limited ("the Company") was held on Monday, the 6'11 day of May, 2019 at 3:30 p.m. at Rama & 
Sundri Watumull Auditorium, Kishinchand Chellaram College, 124, Dinshaw Wachha Road, 
Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020. 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1)(a) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, copy of Annual Report for the financial year ended 317' December, 2018 along- 
with copy of Notice of the 20th AGM is enclosed herewith. 

The Notice of the AGM can also be downloaded from 
http:/ / w w w . m a h i n d r a c i e . c o ~ n / i ~ ~ v e s t o r s / d o w n l o a ~  and 
the Annual Report for financial year 2018 can be downloaded from 
http:/ / www.~nahi~~dracie.c~m/il~vestors/investor-relations/ann~1a1-report.ht~nl. 

Kindly take the same on the record. 

Thanking you, 

For Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited 

r 

Pankaj V. Goyal 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
Membership No.: A 29614 
Encl.: as above 

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited 
CIN L27100RilH1999PLC12 1285 
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Notice
The TWENTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the 
Members of MAHINDRA CIE AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED will be 
held on Monday, the 6th day of May, 2019 at 3:30 p.m. at Rama 
& Sundri Watumull Auditorium, Kishinchand Chellaram College, 
124, Dinshaw Wacha Road, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020 to 
transact the following businesses:
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements (along-with Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements) of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
31st December, 2018 together with the reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jesus Maria Herrera 
Barandiaran (DIN: 06705854) who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ander Arenaza Alvarez 
(DIN: 07591785) who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4.	 Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor
	 To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution 

as an Ordinary Resolution:
	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force] and pursuant to the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, the Company hereby ratifies the 
remuneration payable to Messrs. Dhananjay V. Joshi & 
Associates, Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration Number 
000030), appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost 
records of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st 
December, 2019, amounting to ` 12,00,000/- (Rupees 
Twelve Lakh Only) plus taxes as may be applicable and 
reimbursement of such other out of pocket expenses, as 
may be incurred by them during the course of Audit.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Company 
be accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(including any Committee thereof) to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and to take all such steps as may be 
required in this connection including seeking all necessary 
approvals to give effect to this resolution and to settle 
any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this 
regard.”

5.	 Approval of remuneration by way of commission to 
Independent Directors of the Company

	 To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 
149, 197, 198, other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
Regulation 17 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), approval of 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to pay 
remuneration by way of commission to the Independent 
Directors of the Company, of such sum as the Board of 
Directors may from time to time determine (to be divided 
amongst the Independent Directors in such proportion 
as may be determined by the Board of Directors from 
time to time and equally in default of such determination) 
provided that such commission in aggregate shall not 
exceed, one per cent of the net profits of the Company 
for each Financial Year as computed in the manner laid 
down in section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, or any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof or ` 15 
million, whichever is lower; provided further that none of 
the Independent Directors shall, in any Financial Year, 
individually receive an aggregate remuneration including 
sitting fees exceeding ` 2.5 million.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Company 
be accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(including any Committee thereof) to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and to take all such steps as may be 
required in this connection including seeking all necessary 
approvals to give effect to this resolution and to settle 
any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this 
regard.”

6.	 Approval of revision in the aggregate value of Material 
Related Party Transactions 

	 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23 of Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including 
any amendment, modification or re-enactment thereof and 
in modification of the resolution passed by the members at 
19th Annual General Meeting of the Company, approval of 
the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
to the Material Related Party Transactions, in the nature of 
sale, purchase or supply of goods or materials, availing or 
rendering of services, leasing/renting of property of any kind 
and paying/receiving the lease or rent for such property, 
selling or otherwise disposing off or buying property of any 
kind including plant and equipment, reimbursements to 
be made or received or any other transaction which will 
be in the Ordinary Course of Company’s business and 
on Arm’s Length basis (“Transactions”), entered into or to 
be entered into with Mahindra and Mahindra Limited, for 
Financial Year starting from 1st January, 2019 and every 
Financial Year thereafter, provided that aggregate amount 
of all such Transactions during any one Financial Year shall 
not exceed ` 18,000,000,000 (Rupee Eighteen Thousand 
Million).

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Company 
be accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(including any Committee thereof) to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and to take all such steps as may be 
required in this connection including seeking all necessary 
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approvals to give effect to this resolution and to settle 
any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this 
regard.”

7.	 Approval of Annual Remuneration of Mr. Hemant 
Luthra as Non-executive Chairman of the Company

	 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Regulation 17(6)(ca) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, approval of the members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for payment of 
Annual Remuneration of ` 28,000,000 by way of a monthly 
payment to Mr. Hemant Luthra (DIN:00231420) as the 
Non-Executive Chairman of the Company, along-with 
other benefits as detailed in the explanatory statement 
annexed herewith, to which Mr. Hemant Luthra would be 
entitled to as Non-Executive Chairman of the Company."

8.	 Appointment of Mr. Romesh Kaul as Director
	 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution 

as an Ordinary Resolution:
	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 

149, 152 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), Mr. Romesh Kaul (DIN: 
00209261), who was appointed by the Board of Directors 
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 
17th October, 2018 and who holds office upto the date of 
this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of 
whom the Company has received a Notice in writing from 
a Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 
proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the 
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the 
Company liable to retire by rotation.”

9.	 Approval of appointment and remuneration of Mr. 
Romesh Kaul as Whole-time Director of the Company;

	 To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of the Section 
2(51), 203, 196, 197 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force, approval of the members 
be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. 
Romesh Kaul (DIN: 00209261), as a Whole-time Director 
(designated as Executive Director) of the Company, for 
a period of 1 (one) year from 17th October, 2018, on the 
terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in 
the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the Company 
be accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(including any Committee thereof) to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and to take all such steps as may be 
required in this connection including seeking all necessary 

approvals to give effect to this resolution and to settle 
any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this 
regard.”

By Order of the Board
Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

Krishnan Shankar 
Company Secretary & Head – Legal 

Membership No.: F 3482
Mumbai, 20th February, 2019

Registered Office:
Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, 
Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
CIN: L27100MH1999PLC121285
E-mail: mcie.investors@mahindracie.com 
Website: www.mahindracie.com 
Tel: +91 22 24931449
Fax: +91 22 24915890

Notes:
1.	 In terms of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

an explanatory statement setting out the material facts 
relating to special businesses to be transacted at the 
Annual General Meeting is annexed and forms part of this 
Notice. Further additional information with respect to Item 
No. 2 and 3 is also annexed hereto.

2.	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT 
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD 
OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. 
PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE 
RECEIVED IN THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM AT THE 
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS 
THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME 
FIXED FOR THE MEETING.

	 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not 
exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than ten 
percent of total share capital of the Company carrying 
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and 
such person shall not act as a proxy for any other Member. 
Proxies submitted on behalf of Bodies Corporates (whether 
company or not) should be supported by appropriate 
resolution / authority letter as may be applicable. Proxy 
holder shall prove his/her identity at the time of attending 
the meeting.

	 A proxy shall not have a right to speak at the Annual 
General Meeting. However, in case a Member has not 
voted through the remote e-voting facility, the proxy may 
be entitled to vote through Ballot at the 20th Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”/”The Meeting”).

3.	 In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder 
on proxy form will be sufficient, but names of all the joint 
holders should be stated.

4.	 Bodies Corporates whether Company or not, which 
are Members may attend through their authorized 
representatives appointed under Section 113 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. A copy of authority letter/resolution 
authorizing the same should be deposited with the 
Company/ RTA/ Scrutinizer.
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5.	 Members/ Proxies/Authorised Representatives are 
requested to bring a copy of Annual Report along with 
the attendance slip duly filled in for attending the Meeting. 
Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are 
requested to write their client ID and DP ID and those 
who hold shares in physical form are requested to write 
their Folio Number in the attendance slip for attending the 
Meeting.

6.	 The Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents for its 
Share Registry Work (Physical and Electronic) are Karvy 
Fintech Private Limited (Karvy) having their office at 
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot number 31-32, Gachibowli, 
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, Telangana 
– 500032.

7.	 Members can avail the facility of nomination in respect 
of shares held by them in physical form pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014. Members desiring to avail this 
facility may send their nomination in the prescribed Form 
No. SH. 13 duly filled in to Karvy on address mentioned in 
Note No. 6. Members holding shares in demat form may 
contact their Depository Participant for availing this facility.

8.	 Members holding shares in electronic form are requested 
to intimate immediately any change in their address or 
bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom 
they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 
holding shares in physical form are requested to advise 
any change in their address or bank mandates immediately 
to the Company/Karvy.

9.	 The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the 
Company will be closed from 30th April, 2019 to 6th May, 
2019 (both days inclusive).

10.	 During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed 
for the commencement of the AGM and ending with the 
conclusion of the Meeting, a Member would be entitled to 
inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business 
hours of the Company. All documents referred to in the 
Notice and accompanying explanatory statement are open 
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on 
all working days of the Company between 11:00 a.m. and 
1:00 p.m. upto the date of the Annual General Meeting and 
at the venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

11.	 Members desiring any information with regard to Accounts/ 
Annual Reports are requested to write to the Company 
Secretary at least 10 days before the date of the AGM 
so as to enable the Management to keep the information 
ready.

12.	 Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 18(1) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Notice calling the AGM 
along with the Annual Report for the Financial Year ended 
31st December, 2018, would be sent by electronic mode 
on the e-mail addresses as registered with Depositories/ 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, unless the Members 
have requested for a physical copy of the same. For 
Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, 
physical copies would be sent by the permitted mode.

	 Members are requested to support this Green Initiative 
by registering/updating their e-mail addresses with 
the Depository Participant (in case of Shares held in 
dematerialised form) or with Karvy Fintech Private 
Limited (in case of Shares held in physical form) in the 
prescribed form which can be down loaded from the 

Company’s website at http://www.mahindracie.com/
investors/downloads/documents.html#form-for-updation-
and-registration-of-e-mail-id.

	 Even after registering for e-communication, Members are 
entitled to receive such communication in printed form, upon 
making a request for the same. For any communication, 
the Members may also send requests to the Company’s 
investor email id: mcie.investors@mahindracie.com.

	 Members may also note that, the Notice of 20th Annual 
General Meeting and the Annual Report for the Financial 
Year ended 31st December, 2018 will also be hosted 
on the Company’s website at http://www.mahindracie.
com/investors/downloads/notices.html#annual-general-
meeting and http://www.mahindracie.com/investors/
investor-relations/annual-report.html, respectively for 
download.

13.	 The Company has fixed Monday, 29th April, 2019 as the 
cut-off date for identifying the Members for determining 
the eligibility to vote by remote e-voting facility or at the 
Meeting by Ballot. Instructions for exercising voting rights 
by remote e-voting are provided herewith at Note No. 16 
and forms part of this Notice. A person whose name is 
recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of 
Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as on 
the cut-off only shall be entitled to vote on the resolutions 
through the facility of remote e-voting or by voting through 
Ballot at the Annual General Meeting.

14.	 The Company has not declared any dividend so far 
however, pursuant to the Integrated scheme and 
the Composites scheme of Amalgamation Mahindra 
Ugine Steel Company Limited (MUSCO) and Mahindra 
Composites Limited (MCL) merged with the Company, 
both MUSCO and MCL had unclaimed dividends which 
were transferred in the Books of the Company. 

	 During the year, pursuant to the provisions of section 124 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Declaration 
and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014, the Company 
has transferred ` 269,170/- to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF) in respect of the dividend declared 
by MCL (Transferor Company amalgamated with MCIE) 
for Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2011. With this, the 
Company has transferred the entire unclaimed dividend 
pertaining to MUSCO and MCL which was transferred in 
the books of the Company to IEPF. No claim lies against 
the Company in respect of these dividends. Pursuant 
to the provisions of Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016 as may be amended from time to time, the 
Company has uploaded the details of said unpaid and 
unclaimed amounts transferred to IEPF by the Company 
on its website at http://www.mahindracie.com/investors/
downloads/documents.html#unclaimed-amounts and also 
on the website of IEPF viz. www.iepf.gov.in. 

	 The Members whose dividend is transferred to the IEPF 
Authority can claim the same from the IEPF Authority by 
following the procedure as detailed on the website of IEPF 
Authority http://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.html.

15.	 Further, pursuant to the Integrated scheme and the 
Composites scheme, the fractional entitlement of the 
member(s) of the Transferor Companies were consolidated 
and equity shares arising out of such consolidation were 
allotted to an Trustee who in turn had sold said shares 
in the open market at the prevailing market prices 
and transferred the net sale proceeds thereof to the 
Company and the Company had in turn distributed the 
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said proceeds to respective members in the ratio of their 
fractional entitlements by permitted mode. The details 
of the members whose fractional entitlements are lying 
unclaimed with the Company is uploaded on the website of 
the Company at: http://www.mahindracie.com/investors/
downloads/documents.html#unclaimed-amounts. 

	 The concerned Members are requested to verify the details 
of their unclaimed amounts, if any, from the said websites 
and accordingly lodge their claim before the same is due 
for transfer to the IEPF. It may be noted that once the 
unpaid amount of fractional entitlement is transferred to 
IEPF, no claim shall lie against the Company in respect 
thereof.

16.	 Electronic Voting through remote mode:
	 In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended 
and the provisions of Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their 
vote electronically on all resolutions set-forth in this notice 
through e-voting platform provided by Karvy.

	 The Members may cast their votes using the electronic 
voting platform provided by Karvy from a place other than 
the venue of the Meeting (‘remote e-voting’). Members 
attending the meeting who have not already cast their vote 
by remote e-Voting shall be able to exercise their voting 
right at the meeting. Facility of voting through ballot shall 
also be made available at the meeting.

	 i.	 The remote e-voting facility will be available during 
the following period:

		  a)	 Day, date and time of commencement of 
remote e-voting: Friday, 3rd May, 2019 at 9:00 
a.m.

		  b)	 Day, date and time of end of remote e-voting 
beyond which remote e-voting will not be 
allowed: Sunday, 5th May, 2019 at 5:00 p.m.

	 ii.	 The voting rights of the Members holding shares in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, in respect 
of e-voting shall be reckoned in proportion to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital as on the 
cut-off date being Monday, 29th April, 2019. A person 
who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should 
treat Notice of this Meeting for information purposes 
only.

	 iii.	 The Company is dispatching the AGM Notice and 
the Annual Report to the shareholders whose name 
is recorded as on 31st March, 2019 in the Register 
of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners 
maintained by the depositories. Any person who 
acquires Shares of the Company and becomes 
Member of the Company after 31st March 2019 
being the date reckoned for the dispatch of the 
AGM Notice & Annual Report and holds shares 
as on the cut-off date i.e. 29th April 2019, may 
obtain the User Id and password in the manner as 
mentioned below:

		  a)	 If the mobile number of the Member is 
registered against Folio No./ DPID Client ID, 
the Member may send SMS:

			   MYEPWD<space> E-Voting Event Number
			   +Folio number or DPID Client ID to
			   +91-9212993399

			   Example for NSDL: 
MYEPWD<SPACE>IN12345612345678

			   Example for CDSL: 
MYEPWD<SPACE>1402345612345678

			   Example for Physical: MYEPWD<SPACE> 
XXXX1234567890

		  b)	 If e-mail address or mobile number of the 
Member is registered against Folio No./ DPID 
Client ID, then on the home page of https://
evoting.karvy.com, the Member may click 
“Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. or DPID 
Client ID and PAN to generate a password.

		  c)	 Member may call Karvy’s Toll free number 
1-800-3454-001.

		  d)	 Member may send an e-mail request to 
evoting@karvy.com.

	 iv.	 The remote e-voting will not be allowed beyond the 
aforesaid date and time and the e-voting module 
shall be disabled by Karvy upon expiry of aforesaid 
period.

	 v.	 Details of Website: https://evoting.karvy.com 
	 vi.	 Details of persons to be contacted for issues relating 

to e-voting:
		  Mr. Prem Kumar,
		  Karvy Fintech Private Limited, Unit: Mahindra 

CIE Automotive Limited, Karvy Selenium Tower 
B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad – 500 032.

		  Tel. No.: +91 40 67162222/67161509; 
		  Toll Free No.: 18003454001
		  Fax No.: +91 40 23001153; 
		  E-mail: evoting@karvy.com. 
	 vii.	 Details of Scrutinizer: Mr. Sachin Bhagwat, 

Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 
ACS 10189) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer 
to scrutinize the e-voting and ballot process in a fair 
and transparent manner.

	 viii.	 The procedure and instructions for remote e-Voting 
facility are as follows:

		  A.	 In case of Members receiving email from 
Karvy:

			   i.	 Open your web browser during the 
voting period and navigate to ‘https:// 
evoting.karvy.com’.

			   ii.	 Enter the login credentials (i.e. User 
ID and password mentioned in the 
email). Your Folio No. or DP ID /Client 
ID will be your User ID. However, if you 
are already registered with Karvy for 
e-voting, you can use your existing User 
ID and password for casting your vote.

			   iii.	 After entering these details appropriately, 
click on “LOGIN”.

				    You will now reach password change 
menu wherein you are required 
to mandatorily change your login 
password in the new password field. 
The new password has to be minimum 
eight characters consisting of at least 
one upper case (A-Z), one lower case 
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(a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a 
special character (like *, #, @, etc.). 
The system will prompt you to change 
your password and update your contact 
details like mobile number, email ID, 
etc., on first login. You may also enter 
a secret question and answer of your 
choice to retrieve your password in case 
you forget it. It is strongly recommended 
that you do not share your password 
with any other person and that you take 
utmost care to keep your password 
confidential.

			   iv.	 You need to login again with the new 
credentials.

			   v.	 On successful login, the system will 
prompt you to select the E-Voting Event 
Number for Mahindra CIE Automotive 
Limited.

			   vi.	 If you are holding shares in Demat form 
and had logged on to https:// evoting.
karvy.com and casted your vote earlier 
for any other Company, then your 
existing login id and password are to be 
used.

			   vii.	 On the voting page, enter the number 
of shares (which represents the number 
of votes) as on the cut-off date i.e. 29th 
April, 2019 under “FOR/ AGAINST” or 
alternatively, you may partially enter 
any number in “FOR” and partially in 
“AGAINST” but the total number in 
“FOR/AGAINST” taken together should 
not exceed your total shareholding as 
on the cut- off date.

			   viii.	 You may also choose the option 
“ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not 
be counted under either head.

			   ix.	 Members holding multiple folios/ demat 
accounts shall choose the voting 
process separately for each of the folios/
demat accounts.

			   x.	 Voting has to be done for each item 
of the Notice separately. In case you 
do not desire to cast your vote on 
any specific item it will be treated as 
abstained.

			   xi.	 You may then cast your vote by 
selecting an appropriate option and click 
on “Submit”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else 
“CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, 
you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote. 

			   xii.	 During the voting period, Members can 
login any number of times till they have 
voted on the Resolution(s).

		  	 xiii.	 Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. 
other than Individuals, HUF, NRIs, 
etc.) are also required to send scanned 
certified true copy (PDF Format) of 
the Board Resolution/Authority Letter, 
etc., together with attested specimen 

signature(s) of the duly authorised 
representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at 
e-mail ID: sbhagwatcs@yahoo.co.in 
with a copy to evoting@karvy.com. 
They may also upload the same in 
the e-voting module in their login. The 
scanned image of the above-mentioned 
documents should be in the naming 
format “Corporate Name_ EVENT NO.”

		  B.	 In case of Members receiving Notice by 
post:

			   i.	 Initial password is provided at the 
bottom of the Attendance Slip

			   ii.	 Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (i) to 
Sl. No. (xiii) above, to cast vote.

		  C.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Members and e-voting User Manual for 
Members available at the download section 
of https://evoting.karvy.com or contact Mr. 
Prem Kumar of Karvy Fintech Private Limited 
at 040- 6716 1509 or at 1800-3454-001 (toll 
free).

		  D.	 The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the 
vote shall be final.

		  E.	 Once the vote on a resolution stated in this 
notice is cast by Member through remote 
e-voting, the Member shall not be allowed to 
change it subsequently and such e-vote shall 
be treated as final. The Members who have 
cast their vote by remote e-voting may also 
attend the Meeting, however such Member 
shall not be allowed to vote again.

		  F.	 The Scrutinizer after scrutinising the votes 
cast at the Meeting by Ballot and through 
remote e-voting, will make a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report and submit the same 
forthwith not later then 48 hours of conclusion 
of the meeting to the Chairman of the Company 
or a person authorised by him in writing, who 
shall countersign the same.

		  G.	 The Results declared along with the 
consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report shall be 
hosted on the website of the Company i.e. 
www.mahindracie.com and on the website 
of Karvy i.e. https://evoting.karvy.com. The 
results shall simultaneously be communicated 
to BSE Limited and the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited. The result shall 
also be displayed on the Notice Board at the 
Registered Office of the Company.

		  H.	 The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed 
on the date of the Meeting, i.e. 6th May, 2019, 
subject to receipt of the requisite number of 
votes in favour of the Resolutions.

17.	 Updation of Members’ Details:
	 The format of the Register of Members prescribed by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies 
Act, 2013 requires the Company/ Registrar and Transfer 
Agents to record additional details of Members, including 
their PAN details, e-mail address, etc. Members holding 
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shares in physical form are requested to submit these 
additional details to Karvy in the prescribed form. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit 
the details to their respective Depository Participants.

	 Members are requested to:
	 a)	 Intimate to Karvy at the address mentioned at Note 

No. 6 above, changes, if any, in their registered 
addresses at an early date, in case of Shares held in 
physical form;

	 b)	 Intimate to the respective Depository Participant, 
changes, if any, in their registered addresses, 
mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile 
details of the folio which may be used for sending 
future communication(s) at an early date, in case of 
Shares held in dematerialised form;

	 c)	 Quote their folio numbers/Client ID/DP ID in all 
correspondence; and

	 d)	 Consolidate their holdings into one folio in case they 
hold Shares under multiple folios in the identical 
order of names.

18.	 Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company 
immediately of:

	 a)	 Change in their residential status on return to India 
for permanent settlement.

	 b)	 Particulars of their bank account maintained in India 
with complete name, branch, account type, account 
number, IFSC code and address of the bank with pin 
code number, if not furnished earlier.

19.	 Pursuant to the Integrated scheme and the Composites 
scheme of Amalgamation Mahindra Ugine Steel Company 
Limited (MUSCO) and Mahindra Composites Limited 
(MCL) merged with the Company, the share certificates 
in respect of aforesaid issue and allotment of shares were 
dispatched to eligible members at the addresses registered 
with the respective Transferor Companies. While majority 
of the members have received the share certificates, a few 
of the share certificates were returned to the Company 
as “returned undelivered” and are lying with Karvy. These 
share certificates were ‘undelivered’ due to various reasons 
including ‘incomplete address’, ‘persons left the address’ 
etc. and postal authorities returned these to the RTA.

	 In this regard, pursuant to Regulation 39(4) read with 
Schedule VI of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company has send three letters to members for claiming 
their unclaimed shares on 3rd May, 2017, 15th July, 2017 
and 2nd May, 2018. The Company had received many 
responses from members, but many share certificates still 
remain unclaimed. The Company will be transferring the 
said cases in Demat Suspense Account of the Company. 
To claim the unclaimed share certificates the members 
can contact the Company or Karvy.

20.	 Pursuant to SEBI circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/
CIR/P/2018/73 dated 20th April, 2018 the Company has sent 
three letters to such members on 30th May, 2018, 2nd July, 
2018 and 10th September, 2018 where folios do not have 
or have incomplete details of PAN and/or Bank Account to 
compulsorily furnish these details to the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent (RTA) / the Company for updating the details 
in the folio. These cases also included shares which were 
unclaimed. The members who are yet to update their PAN 
and/or Bank Account details are requested to update the 

same by providing the duly filled format for furnishing the 
PAN and Bank details which is enclosed herewith this Notice, 
along-with all necessary documents as mentioned therein 
and send the same to Karvy. 

21.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth 
Amendment) Regulations, 2018 read with SEBI (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2018 (RTA Regulations) mandated that the 
transfer of securities would be carried out in dematerialized 
form only. In accordance with the said circular the members 
of the Company are requested to note that, with effect from 
1st April, 2019 (unless extended):

	 a.	 except in case of transmission or transposition of 
securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities 
shall not be processed unless the securities are held 
in dematerialized form with a depository. Accordingly, 
any shareholder who is desirous of transferring shares 
(which are held in physical form) after 1st April, 2019 
can do so only after the shares are dematerialized

	 b.	 however, the above does not prohibit a shareholder 
from holding shares in physical form even after 1st 
April, 2019

	 The Company in this regard has sent three letters on 
31st August, 2018, 1st October, 2018 and 1st November, 
2018 to the shareholders informing them about the above 
requirement. We request all the shareholders holding 
shares in Physical Form to demat their shares at the 
earliest.

22.	 The route map of the venue of the Meeting is annexed 
to this Notice. The prominent landmark for the venue is 
also depicted as ‘near to’ in the route map. The same has 
also been hosted on the website of the Company at http://
www.mahindracie.com/investors/downloads/notices.
html#annual-general-meeting.

By Order of the Board
Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

Krishnan Shankar 
Company Secretary & Head – Legal 

Membership No.: F 3482
Mumbai, 20th February, 2019
Registered Office:
Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, 
Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
CIN: L27100MH1999PLC121285
E-mail: mcie.investors@mahindracie.com 
Website: www.mahindracie.com 
Tel: +91 22 24931449
Fax: +91 22 24915890

Additional information with respect to Item No. 2 and 3
ITEM NO. 2
Mr. Jesus Maria Herrera Barandiaran, Non-Executive Director 
on the Board of the Company is liable to retire by rotation and 
being eligible, have offered himself for re-appointment.
Mr. Herrera, 52, received a University Degree in Economics. 
Mr. Herrera is expert in internationalization. He joined CIE 
Automotive in 1995. He was Managing Director of the America 
division and then became CEO of the CIE Automotive Group in 
2013.
Mr. Herrera was appointed as Non-Executive Director of the 
Company with effect from 4th October, 2013. Mr. Herrera did not 
draw any remuneration from the Company. Mr. Herrera did not 
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hold any Equity Shares of the Company as on the date of this 
Notice.
The number of Meetings of the Board attended by Mr. 
Herrera during the year and other Directorships, Membership/ 
Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards is provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report.
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company are inter-se related to each other.
ITEM NO. 3
Mr. Ander Arenaza Alvarez, the Director of the Company, is 
liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, have offered himself 
for re-appointment.
Mr. Arenaza, 50, holds degree in Industrial Engineering 
(Superior Engineering School of Bilbao), MBA from Deusto 
University (Bilbao). Mr. Arenaza has extensive experience 
in the automotive sector and has in the past held important 
responsibilities within the CIE Automotive Group across 
several key locations worldwide. He has been working with CIE 
Automotive Group for 10 years and managed the machining and 
aluminium divisions. He has developed his professional career 
in the automotive sector, where he has performed different roles 
with an international footprint. 
Members of the Company had regularized the appointment of  
Mr. Arenaza as Director of the Company at the 18th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company held on 27th April, 2017.  
Mr. Arenaza was also appointed as Whole-time Director of the 
Company with effect from 13th September, 2016 for a period of 
three years. His role as an Executive Director of the Company 
is to oversee the Company’s Business in India and Europe. Mr. 
Arenaza drew remuneration of ` 1.54 million as the Executive 
Director of the Company during the Financial Year 2018.  
Mr. Arenaza did not hold any Equity Shares of the Company as 
on the date of this Notice.
The number of Meetings of the Board attended by Mr. 
Arenaza during the year and other Directorships, Membership/ 
Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards is provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report.
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company are inter-se related to each other.
The Board recommends the Ordinary resolution as set out in 
item no. 2 and 3 of this Notice for approval of the Members.
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE 
SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM NO. 4
The Board of Directors, at their Meeting held on 20th February, 
2019, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved 
the re-appointment of M/s. Dhananjay V. Joshi & Associates, 
Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors of the Company for 
conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the 
Financial Year ending 31st December, 2019, at a remuneration 
of ` 12,00,000 (Rupees Twelve Lakh Only) excluding taxes and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses.
Pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members of a 
Company are required to ratify the remuneration to be paid to the 
Cost Auditors of the Company.
Accordingly, consent of the Members of the Company is sought 
by passing an Ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of 
the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the 
Cost Auditors for conducting the Audit of Cost records, for the 
Financial Year ending 31st December, 2019.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 4. 
of the Notice.
The Board recommends the Ordinary resolution set out at Item 
No. 4 of the Notice for approval of the Members.
ITEM NO. 5
As on 31st December, 2018 the Board of Directors of the 
Company consisted of two Executive and ten Non- Executive 
Directors including six Independent Directors. The Non-
Executive Directors bring relevant knowledge and expertise and 
provide required diversity in Board’s decision making process. 
The role played by the Directors in Company’s governance and 
performance is very important for sustainable growth of the 
Company.
Pursuant to Section 149(9), an independent director is entitled 
to receive (a) sitting fee for Board/Committee meetings as 
may be prescribed under second proviso in Section 197(5); (b) 
reimbursement of expenses for attending the Board/Committee 
meetings; (c) profit related commission as may be approved 
by the members. Hence the Company may pay profit related 
commission to the Independent Directors with prior approval of 
the members. 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with 
approval of members at 19th AGM held on 19th April, 2018 the 
sub-limits for remuneration payable to Directors of the Company 
were modified as following:
(i)	 total remuneration paid to all the Directors taken together 

in respect of any Financial Year shall not exceed 11% of 
the net profits of the Company for that Financial Year.

(ii)	 the remuneration paid to all the Non-Executive Directors 
of the Company taken together in respect of any Financial 
Year may exceed 1% but shall not exceed 4% of the net 
profits of the Company for that Financial Year and 

(iii)	 the remuneration payable to all the Executive Directors 
[i.e. Managing Director or Whole-time Director] of the 
Company taken together in respect of any Financial Year 
shall not exceed 7 % of the net profits of the Company for 
that Financial Year.

At present, except for the sitting fees paid to the Independent 
Directors for attending the meetings of the Board and Committees 
thereof, the Company does not pay any remuneration to 
the Independent Directors. The Board of Directors, on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and subject to approval of the members, approved 
to pay profit linked commission to the Independent Directors of 
the Company within the permissible limits under the Companies 
Act, 2013 as mentioned above and subject to such commission 
in aggregate does not exceed one per cent of the net profits of 
the Company for each Financial Year or ` 15 million, whichever 
is lower and none of the Independent Directors, in any Financial 
Year, individually receives an aggregate remuneration including 
sitting fees exceeding ` 2.5 million. 
In accordance with Regulations 17(6) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 all fees or compensation, if 
any, paid to Non-Executive Directors, including Independent 
Directors (except sitting fees) requires approval of members of 
the Company. Article 152(2) of the Articles of Association of the 
Company requires approval of members by Special Resolution 
for payment of remuneration by way of commission to Non-
Executive Directors. 
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In view of the above, the resolution at Item No. 5 of the notice 
is placed before the members for their approval as a Special 
Resolution.
Except the Independent Directors of the Company none of 
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are 
interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the resolution 
set out at Item No. 5.
The Board recommends the Special resolution set out at Item 
No. 5 of the Notice for approval of the Members.
ITEM NO. 6
Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Regulations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(the Listing Regulations) mandates that all ‘material related 
party transactions’ that a Company enters into with its Related 
Parties should be approved by the Members of the Company by 
passing a resolution. Regulation 23 further defines a ‘material 
related party transaction’ as a transaction(s) to be entered 
into individually or taken together with previous transactions 
during a Financial Year, exceeding ten percent of the Annual 
Consolidated Turnover of the listed entity as per the last Audited 
Financial Statements of the listed entity.
Mahindra and Mahindra Limited (M&M) is a Related Party of 
the Company being the Holding Company of the investor in 
relation to which the Company is an Associate. The Company 
has Transactions with M&M inter-alia in the nature of sale, 
purchase or supply of goods or materials, availing or rendering 
of services, leasing/renting of property of any kind and 
paying/receiving the lease or rent for such property, selling or 
otherwise disposing off or buying property of any kind including 
plant and equipment, reimbursements to be made or to be 
received (“Transactions”). All the Transactions with M&M are in 
the Ordinary Course of Company’s business and are at Arm’s 
Length basis. 
The Members of the Company by a resolution passed on 19th 
April, 2018 at the 19th Annual General meeting of the Company 
approved material related party transaction with M&M for an 
amount not exceeding ` 15,000 Million in any Financial Year 
from 1st April, 2018 onwards. 
During the Financial Year ended 31st December, 2018 the 
Company had an aggregate transaction with M&M which was 
more than 10% of the Annual Consolidated Turnover of the 
Company as per its last Audited Financial Statements, though 
within the limits approved by the Members. 
During FY2018, the Scheme of Amalgamation has been filed for 
amalgamation of Bill Forge Private Limited (Bill Forge), a wholly 
owned subsidiary of the Company with the Company, which shall 
be completed soon. Bill Forge had entered into Transactions with 
M&M. Upon the amalgamation of Bill Forge with the Company, 
the Company will continue to execute contracts which Bill Forge 
had entered into with M&M besides the Transactions, which the 
Company already has with M&M.
Considering the aggregate transactions of the Company 
(including that of Bill Forge) and anticipated growth over next 
three to four years, approval of Members is requested to increase 
the limits of the Transaction from ` 15,000 Million to ` 18,000 
Million.
Pursuant to Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations as amended 
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, 
which shall be effective from 1st April, 2019, no related party of 
the Company shall vote to approve the resolution for approving 

material related party transactions. Accordingly, no Member of 
the Company being a related party or having any interest in the 
Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice shall 
vote to approve the said resolution.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their 
relatives are interested or concerned, financially or otherwise 
in the Resolution set out at Item No. 6 save and except to the 
extent of their Directorship /shareholding/employment, if any, in 
any of the entities mentioned in the resolution.
The Board recommends the Ordinary resolution set out at Item 
No. 6 of the Notice for approval of the Members.
ITEM NO. 7
As you are aware, Mr. Hemant Luthra who was the Executive 
Chairman of the Company upto 31st March, 2018, had, in 
consonance with the spirit of separating the role of the Chairman 
from the executive function, which had been assumed by the CEO, 
volunteered to demit executive responsibilities of the Company 
with effect from 1st April, 2018. However, the Board of Directors 
had, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee at the Board meeting held on 20th February, 2018, 
decided to take advantage of the continued advice and guidance 
of Mr. Hemant Luthra in the Company’s growth strategy, 
which inter-alia included managing stakeholders relationship, 
identifying mergers, acquisition and investment opportunities 
and leveraging the investments to facilitate the maximizing the 
value of the Brand and the Company. The Board had also, on the 
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
and subject to the approval of the members of the Company, 
approved payment of remuneration to Mr. Hemant Luthra in his 
capacity as Non-executive Chairman. 
Subsequently, the Members of the Company had at the 19th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 19th April, 2018, 
approved the following remuneration, payable to Mr. Hemant 
Luthra for a period of two years commencing from 1st April, 2018:
(a)	 Remuneration of ` 28,000,000 per annum, by way of a 

monthly payment
(b)	 Use of telephone/Mobile for Official and Personal purposes
(c)	 Use of Company car for Official and personal use
(d)	 Club Membership
In addition to the above, Mr. Hemant Luthra had already been 
granted Stock Options in February 2016 in accordance with 
Company’s Employee Stock Options Scheme -2015 (ESOP-
2015) approved by the Members. In accordance with ESOP-
2015, post retirement of his services from the Company w.e.f. 1st 
April, 2018, these options continued to vest and exercised by Mr. 
Hemant Luthra as per vesting schedule.
Regulation 17(6)(ca) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended with effect from 1st April, 2019, 
mandates a Company to obtain consent of the Members by way 
of Special Resolution if the remuneration payable to a single 
Non-Executive Director in a year exceeds fifty per cent of the 
aggregate remuneration payable to all Non-Executive Directors 
taken together.
The Company, as part of resolution no. 5 of this notice, proposing 
to pay maximum aggregate remuneration of ` 15 million to 
Independent Directors by way of commission. Further, other 
non-independent non-executive directors of the Company, 
except Mr. Luthra, are not entitled to any remuneration. Approval 
of Members by way of a Special Resolution is sought, to the 
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resolution as set out at Agenda Item No 7 of the notice, approving 
the annual remuneration payable to Mr. Hemant Luthra, as set 
out above, which will exceed fifty percent of the total annual 
remuneration payable to all non-executive directors.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their 
relatives except Mr. Hemant Luthra are interested or concerned, 
financially or otherwise in the Resolution set out at Item No. 7.
The Board recommends the Special resolution set out at Item 
No. 7 of the Notice for approval of the Members.
ITEM NO. 8 and 9
Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, on 
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
the Board at its meeting held on 16th October, 2018 has approved 
appointment of Mr. Romesh Kaul as Additional Director of the 
Company w.e.f. 17th October, 2018. In accordance with the 
Section 161 Mr. Kaul holds office of the Director up to the date of 
this Annual General Meeting. 
Pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides 
that, non-retiring director shall be eligible to be appointed at a 
general meeting, if he or some member intending to propose him 
as a director, has not less than 14 days before the meeting left at 
the registered office of the Company, a notice in writing under his 
hand signifying his candidature as a director or as the case may 
be the intention of such member to propose him as a candidate 
for that office.
The Company received required notice from a member of 
the Company proposing candidature of Mr. Romesh Kaul for 
appointment as Director of the Company.
Mr. Kaul, 61, was the university topper in Mechanical Engineering 
from NIT Srinagar, after which he did his post-graduation from 
IIT, Delhi.
Mr. Kaul joined Mahindra & Mahindra in 2004 as Head of 
Projects for Systech Sector (then MSAT) and executed several 
new projects in the Sector that were growing. In 2005 Mr. Kaul 
was appointed the Director of Mahindra Forgings Limited where 
one of his key contributions was commissioning the Greenfield 
Machining Operations at Mahindra Forgings in 2006.
In 2008, Mr. Kaul took over responsibility as Global CEO of the 
Gears Vertical (India and Italy Operations) in Systech and was 
the Global Chief Executive Officer, Gears Business. In 2010, he 
was inducted into the Group Executive Board of the Mahindra 
Group.
In 2012, Mr. Kaul was also appointed as the Executive Director 
of Mahindra Composites Limited. In 2016, after successfully 
establishing the gears business and nurturing the next level of 
leadership within the business, Mr. Kaul took over the enhanced 
responsibility of the Stampings Division of Company. He currently 
heads the Stampings, Forgings and Composites Divisions of 
Company.
Further, Pursuant the Section 196, 197 read with Schedule V 
of the Companies Act, 2013, on recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board at its meeting held on 
16th October, 2018 appointed Mr. Kaul as Whole-time Director of 
the Company for a period of one year from 17th October, 2018 
and also approved the terms and conditions of his appointment 
including the remuneration. The details of remuneration payable 
to Mr. Romesh Kaul as given below:
i.	 Basic salary of ` 345,520 per month 
ii.	 residential accommodation (furnished or otherwise) or 

House Rent Allowance in lieu thereof, gas, electricity, 
water, furnishings, Reimbursement of Medical expenses, 
Leave Travel Concession, Performance Pay, Flexi Pay, 

Other Allowances, Bonus and Incentives, Employees Stock 
Options, Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation 
Fund, Annuity Fund, Gratuity/Contribution to Gratuity 
Fund, Encashment of Leave not availed at the end of 
tenure, provision of a car and telephone at the residence 
for his use, medical and personal accident insurance and 
other benefits, amenities and facilities, in accordance with 
the Rules of Company.

iii.	 the value of perquisites would be evaluated as per Income-
Tax Rules, 1962 wherever applicable and at cost in the 
absence of any such Rule. 

iv.	 Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation fund 
and Gratuity would not be included in the Computation of 
ceiling on remuneration to the extent these either singly 
or put together are not taxable under the Income- tax Act, 
1961.

v.	 Encashment of earned leave at the end of the tenure as 
per the Rules of the Company shall not be included in the 
computation of ceiling on remuneration.

vi.	 Provision of car for use on Company’s business, telephone 
and other communication facilities at residence would not 
be considered as perquisites.

Pursuant to provision of Section 196 the appointment of a 
whole time director including the terms and conditions thereof is 
required to be approved by the members of the Company in this 
Annual General Meeting.
The number of Meetings of the Board attended by Mr. Kaul during 
the year and other Directorships, Membership/ Chairmanship 
of Committees of other Boards is provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report.
Mr. Kaul drew remuneration of ` 17.57 million prior to his 
appointment as Whole-time Director of the Company i.e., till 16th 
October, 2018. He holds 44,500 Equity Shares in the Company 
as on the date of this Notice.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their 
relatives except Mr. Romesh Kaul and his relatives are interested 
or concerned, financially or otherwise in the Resolution set out 
at Item No. 8 and 9.
The Board recommends the Ordinary resolution(s) set out at 
Item No. 8 and 9 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

By Order of the Board
Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

Krishnan Shankar 
Company Secretary & Head – Legal 

Membership No.: F 3482
Mumbai, 20th February, 2019
Registered Office:
Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, 
Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
CIN: L27100MH1999PLC121285
Email: mcie.investors@mahindracie.com 
Website: www.mahindracie.com 
Tel: +91 22 24931449
Fax: +91 22 24915890
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Route map for venue of the 20th Annual General Meeting:
Date: Monday, 6th May, 2019 
Time: 3:30 p.m.
(Prominent landmark- Churchgate Railway Station)



MAHINDRA CIE AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED
CIN: L27100MH1999PLC121285

Registered Office: Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018.
Website: www.mahindracie.com; Email: mcie.investors@mahindracie.com;

Tel: +91 22 24931449; Fax: +91 22 24915890

Dear Member(s),

Sub: Service of Documents through Electronic Mode

Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 18(3)(i) of the Companies (Management & Administration) 
Rules, 2014 and Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 provides for the facility of service of documents on members by 
a Company through electronic mode. This will enable these shareholders to receive such notice(s)/Annual Report(s)/document(s)/ 
Communication(s) etc., promptly and without loss in postal transit.

Accordingly the Company is requesting for a positive consent from those of its members who hold shares otherwise than in 
dematerialized format, to receive Notices of General Meeting/Postal Ballot, Annual Report and other shareholders communication by 
electronic mode. 

In case you have not yet registered your email id (or you wish to change your already registered email id) you may get the same 
registered/ updated.

1.	 with your Depository Participant, in case you hold the shares in Demat form;

2.	 by writing to the Company by filling and sending back the attached E-communication Registration Form, in case you hold shares 
in physical form.

Shareholder(s) may also send a scanned copy of below Form, duly filled and signed, at the e-mail: mcie.investors@mahindracie.com

As and when there are changes in your e-mail address, you are requested to update the same with your Depository Participant 
(DP). For shares held in physical form, you can register your e-mail address with the Company’s Registrar Karvy Fintech 
Private Limited at einward.ris@karvy.com OR the Company at mcie.investors@mahindracie.com mentioning your name(s) 
and Folio Number.

Please note that if you still wish to get a physical copy of the above documents, the Company will send the same, free of cost, upon receipt 
of a request from you.

We look forward to your support.
Thanking you, 
Yours sincerely
For Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Krishnan Shankar 
Company Secretary & Head – Legal 
Membership No.: F 3482

FORM FOR UPDATION / REGISTRATION OF E-MAIL ADDRESS
To,
Karvy Fintech Private Limited 

Dear Sir/Madam,

I hereby update / register my e-mail address provided below for receiving the Notices, Report and Accounts and other documents from the 
Company through electronic mode: Please find below details for the same;

Name of the Sole / First Holder :

E-mail Address :

DP ID / Client ID / Account No.
(in case of shares held in electronic mode)

:

Physical Folio No. : Contact Nos. (optional)

Signature of the First Holder_____________________________________

Date:
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MAHINDRA CIE AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED
CIN: L27100MH1999PLC121285

Registered Office: Mahindra Towers, P. K. Kurne Chowk, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018.
Website: www.mahindracie.com; E-mail: mcie.investors@mahindracie.com

Tel: +91 22 24931449 Fax: +91 22 24915890

Form No. MGT-11 
PROXY FORM

Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered address :

E-mail Id :

Regd. Folio No./ Client ID No. :

DP ID :
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Dear Shareholders,

We marked the 5th anniversary of the Mahindra CIE with results that I hope 
have given all the stakeholders as much satisfaction as it gives the entire team 
of 12,500 people across the globe that Ander and I are privileged to lead 
under the guidance of your Board and that of CIE. 

The confidence of customers is reflected in the growth of both top and bottom 
line as the Global Teams have come together as one and are performing better 
than ever despite the tougher overall market conditions in both Europe and 
India. 

That performance is underpinned by both better operations and structure. 

The former has been achieved by tighter integration and cross pollination of 
ideas and best practices as both CIE and MCIE teams have visited each other’s 
facilities and learnt from each other. The effectiveness of that process is 
reflected in improved productivity and margins. 

The latter is being achieved by simplifying the legal structure of our 
subsidiaries. All subsidiaries in Europe are now brought under Galfor, and in 
India your board has approved the merger of Bill Forge in to your company.

The efficacy of both the initiatives and the consistent delivery on our strategic 
commitments reflects in our group’s financial strength. And by the confidence 
that shareholders large and small have reposed in us which is most 
emphatically manifested by parent CIE which has increased its stake in your 
Company by 5% taking its overall shareholding to 56%.

We have positioned your Company as one of the leading publicly held 
Automotive Component companies in India. We are determined to build on this 
base by leveraging value accretive opportunities that continue to come our way 
as consolidation marks the industry with OEMs looking to partner with well 
capitalized suppliers who can serve them with the best in class technology and 
products. 

Ander and the entire team deserve to be recognized for having built systemic 
capability which will be instrumental in our quest for delivering operating 
results consistent with our aim of generating better Returns on both Equity 
and Capital Employed. 

Thank you for the trust reposed in us and we pledge to try harder.  

Yours Sincerely,

 

Hemant Luthra

Chairman – Mahindra CIE

2



Dear Friends,

This Annual Report attempts to summarise Mahindra CIE Automotive’s (MCIE) 
performance in 2018, another year of sustainable and profitable growth in 
which we have strived to give above market growth in Sales, while improving 
on Profitability.

In 2018, MCIE’s revenue reached a record ₹ 7,649 crores, while profitability 
is just shy of our target at 15% EBITDA though we have achieved the target of 
EBIT of 10%.

These figures, which stack up well on their own, are even more remarkable in 
light of the macroeconomic uncertainty and sector turmoil in which they were 
achieved: new emissions regulations in Europe; lower production estimates, 
and the automotive demand scenario in India becoming difficult especially in 
last quarter of 2018. 

However, it is in times of trouble that the solidity of CIE’s business model is 
demonstrated; thanks to the strategy of geographical, technological and 
customer diversification and our financial discipline, among other strengths. 
MCIE has managed to continue to post growth quarter after quarter and end 
the year with a new set of record earnings. Meanwhile, we continued to invest 
in incremental capacity and debottlenecking while additionally building a couple 
of brown field projects. 

In short, the fine work done by my team at MCIE in 2018 allows us to look to 
the future with optimism. We will also continue using the CIE model of 
manufacturing excellence to keep improving ourselves.

We are convinced that in the coming years we will continue to deliver our 
objectives, overcoming any and all obstacles, by leveraging the ideas, 
experience and hard work of all.

Thank you for the trust reposed in us and for being invested in Mahindra CIE.

Yours Sincerely,

Ander Arenaza Alvarez

CEO – Mahindra CIE
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Kanhe 2

Composites New Plant

Voronezh, New Press Line 2500 Tons

NEW ADDITIONS THIS YEAR AT MCIE

6



continuous

improvement
 

 

SYNERGY CASE STUDY 3: Foundry 
Division, Urse: Objective was to launch a 
Quality and Efficiency improvement plan. 
The project involved adopting castings 
design standards from CIE’s foundry 
divisions and experts via the process of 
Implementation as technology transfer. 
The benefits will be reducing rejection 
levels in complex Si-Mo parts by 50% 
and yield improvement which have 
resulted in savings of ` 1 million/ 
month.

SYNERGY CASE STUDY 2: Forgings 
Division, Chakan: This year, in house 
teams in conjunction with operational 
experts from CIE undertook the project 
of automation of a press line. The layout 
around the press was reworked to 
improve process flow and reduce cycle 
time. This has resulted in a 25% 
reduction in cycle time and reduction in 
number of workstations (thus leading to 
savings in manpower required) leading 
to better profitability

SYNERGIES 
Adopting the CIE model of manufacturing excellence

SYNERGY CASE STUDY 1: Stampings Division, Kanhe is in the process of setting up a greenfield 
plant for a new best-in-class fully automated tandem press line, robotic welding & assembly cells 
and a well equipped metrology laboratory with the latest engineering & quality assurance 
processes. This is being done in conjunction with CIE's domain experts and is expected to be a 
technology demonstrator of the capabilities that MCIE can bring to the industry.
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Dear Shareholders

Your Directors present their Report together with the audited 

ended 31st

A. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (STANDALONE)

(` in Million)

PARTICULARS FY ended  
31st December, 

2018

FY ended  
31st December, 

2017

Less: Depreciation

Financials

` `

` `

`
`

` `

`

Dividend

Transfer to Reserves

B. OPERATIONAL REVIEW

India

Europe

C. Investor Relations (IR)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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D. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subsidiary Companies

 

`

31st `

`
`

`  
31st `

stood at ` `

operations was `  
31st

Scheme of Merger

th th

Transfer of investment held in Mahindra Forgings Europe 
AG (MFE) to CIE Galfor S. A.

in `

Closure of Stokes Group Limited

th

SECTION 4
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Associate Company

th

 

E. CHANGE IN SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTER AND 
PROMOTER GROUP

st

F. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

G. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

H. CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES

Annexure I

I. AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors and Auditor’s report
th

th 
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rd

th

th

st 

st

th

th

st

st

ended 31st

Secretarial Auditor

31st

st

Report as Annexure II.

Cost Auditors

ended 31st

st

th

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

J. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, 
INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES

K. PUBLIC DEPOSITS AND LOANS/ADVANCES

L. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION 
AND PROTECTION FUND

SECTION 4
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`

st 

M. EMPLOYEES

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

th

st

st

 
31st

th

th

Employees’ Stock Option Scheme

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

Annexure III

`
st
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`
Annexure IV

Industrial Relations

N. BOARD AND COMMITTEES

Directors

st

st st 

st

th

th 

th

th

th

th

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

:

Year ended 31st

st

st

SECTION 4
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st

Board, Committee and Annual General Meeting

st th

th th th  
th th

Meeting of Independent Directors

Performance Evaluation of the Board

Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors

Policy on Appointment and Remuneration

 

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee

th
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O. GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance

Vigil Mechanism

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Business Responsibility Report

Risk Management

P. SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

Sustainability

Awareness on sustainability

Safety, Health and Environmental Performance

Safety and Health

SECTION 4
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Environmental Initiatives

1) Water:

2) Energy:

3) Waste Management:

4) Green Supply Chain Management (GSCM): The 

5) EHS Legal Compliances: 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
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`
`

 
`

`

`
two reasons

Annexure V

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Annexure VI

Q. SECRETARIAL

Issue of Shares

`

st

`
 

`

Compliance with the provisions of Secretarial Standard 1 
and Secretarial Standard 2

Compliance with Downstream Investment conditionalities 

SECTION 4
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Annual Return

 

Other Policies under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Dividend Distribution Policy

st

Annexure VII

R. GENERAL

Acknowledgement

 Hemant Luthra

th
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Annexure I
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis—
st

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis—
st

Sr. 
No.

Name(s) of the 
related party 
& Nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions

Value of 
contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions  
(` in Million)

Duration of 
contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions

Salient terms 
of contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions

Date of approval by the 
board, if any

Amount 
paid as 

advance  
(` in 

Million)
1

Rent paid
transactions 

were in the 

th

th

 
`

st

Purchase

Total 13,755

Hemant Luthra
th

SECTION 4
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Annexure II
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
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 Sachin Bhagwat
th

SECTION 4
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Annexure III
DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5 (1) of Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Name of Director Designation The ratio of the remuneration 
of each director to the median 
remuneration of employees

Barandiaran *
Director

Director

Director

# Became Non-Executive Director with effect from 1st April, 2018, hence remuneration as 
Executive Director till 31st March, 2018 is only considered.

## Appointed as Executive Director with effect from 17th October, 2018, hence remuneration 
is considered from that date only.

* Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors neither received any remuneration from the 
Company nor were paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings.

@ Independent Directors were not paid any remuneration except the sitting fees for attending 
meeting of Board and committees.
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The percentage increase in Name of Director/KMP Designation % increase in 
Remuneration

Note:

st

th

The percentage increase in 

Note:

st

31st

st

Note:

Hemant Luthra
th
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Annexure IV
STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 
OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

` )
Sl.
No.

Name of the 
employees

Designation Remuneration received 
[in ` Million] (Excluding 

perquisite value pursuant 
to exercise of ESOPs of 

the Company), if any

Perquisite value 
of the ESOP of 
the Company 

exercised 
during the year, 

if any

Experience 
in years

Age in 
years

Date of 
commencement 

of current 
employment

Last employment 
held

1
Luthra*

3

 

Rudrapur

Desai

its order dated 31st th

st

st

Notes:

than ` `

Hemant Luthra
th 
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Annexure V
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

SECTION 4
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Sr. 
No. Name of the Director Category Designation

1

3

`

Particulars Amount (` In Million)

spent during the 

spent during the 
`

`

spent during the 

`

Sr. 
No.

CSR Project 
or Activity 

Sector in which 
the Project is 
covered (as in 

Sch VII)

Projects or programs 
1) Local areas or other 
2)  Specify the State and 

district where projects 
or programs was 
undertaken

Amount 
Outlay 

(Budget) 
project / 
program 

wise

Amount spent on the 
project or programs Sub-
heads: during Financial 
Year 1st January 2018 to 

31st December, 2018 
(1)  Direct expenditure on 

projects or programs
(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure up 
to the reporting 

period

Amount 
Spent: directly 

or through 
implementing 

agency
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Sr. 
No.

CSR Project 
or Activity 

Sector in which 
the Project is 
covered (as in 

Sch VII)

Projects or programs 
1) Local areas or other 
2)  Specify the State and 

district where projects 
or programs was 
undertaken

Amount 
Outlay 

(Budget) 
project / 
program 

wise

Amount spent on the 
project or programs Sub-
heads: during Financial 
Year 1st January 2018 to 

31st December, 2018 
(1)  Direct expenditure on 

projects or programs
(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure up 
to the reporting 

period

Amount 
Spent: directly 

or through 
implementing 

agency

Direct through 
contractor

Direct through 
contractor

Pune
Direct through 

contractor

Direct through 
contractor

Direct through 

sanitation

Pune

sanitation sanitation

Direct

SECTION 4
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Sr. 
No.

CSR Project 
or Activity 

Sector in which 
the Project is 
covered (as in 

Sch VII)

Projects or programs 
1) Local areas or other 
2)  Specify the State and 

district where projects 
or programs was 
undertaken

Amount 
Outlay 

(Budget) 
project / 
program 

wise

Amount spent on the 
project or programs Sub-
heads: during Financial 
Year 1st January 2018 to 

31st December, 2018 
(1)  Direct expenditure on 

projects or programs
(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure up 
to the reporting 

period

Amount 
Spent: directly 

or through 
implementing 

agency

Direct

Direct 

Direct 

Total 55.79 16.13 33.22

6) Reasons for not spending full amount

` `
`

`
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`

 

Ander Alvarez Daljit Mirchandani Romesh Kaul

th

SECTION 4
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Annexure VI
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  
SEC 134(3) (M) OF RULE 8(3) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 IS FORMING PART OF THE BOARD´S REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2018

A) Conservation of Energy

 

 

 

 

 

 

 i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

 ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

 iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments

`

`

B) Technology absorption
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C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

 ` `

Hemant Luthra
th 

SECTION 4



34

Annexure VII
Dividend Distribution Policy

st

`

• Internal Factors

• External Factors

The retained earnings of the Company may be used in any of the following ways
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Background

Exhibit 1: Legal Structure of Mahindra CIE

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
Precision 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Operating   
 

Exhibit 2: Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited Subsidiary Companies as on 31st December, 2018

Subsidiary Companies Information
Sr. 
No.

Name of the Subsidiary Proportion of Ownership 
Interest

Remarks

1  

 

 

3
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MCIE Overview

Exhibit 3: MCIE – Lines of business

Geography Product Speciality Focus Areas Key Customers FY 2018 Revenue  
(` in Million)

Forgings

Tractors

passenger cars

Stampings

Castings

Tractors and Tier 1
Magnetic Products

Lighting

Composites

and Products
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Geography Product Speciality Focus Areas Key Customers FY 2018 Revenue  
(` in Million)

Gears

Industry Outlook & Structure: Caution Ahead

(Source: IMF, World Economic 
Outlook, January, 2019)

Europe

(Source: European 
Economic Forecast, Autumn 2018).

Passenger Vehicles
Period 2018 2017 Change

 

 

India
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Human Resources and Industrial Relations Climate 

India
st

Europe
st

st

st

Strategy and Operational Performance

Passenger Vehicles (PV's+UV's+Vans)

Period 2018 2017 Change

Tractors
Period 2018 2017 Change

Two Wheelers
Period 2018 2017 Change
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India

Europe

Strategy Roadmap

Financial Performance 
st st

MCIE’s abridged P&L Statement for the Financial Year 2018  

` 
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Year Ended Year Ended

December 18 December 17 December 18 December 17
Audited Audited Audited Audited

1   

23,067 76,485
2,226 3,830

25,293 80,315

14,224 37,738
(262) (1,421)

2,847 13,297
739 2,867

5,442 20,192
22,990 72,672

3 2,303 7,643

298 387
2,601 8,030

82 502
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` 
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Year Ended Year Ended

December 18 December 17 December 18 December 17
Audited Audited Audited Audited

2,519 7,528

1,286 -
1,233 7,528

796 1,899
82 144

11 355 5,485
355 5,485

13 ` 3,788 3,788

 
`

0.94 14.49
0.94 14.48

Information for our Indian and Overseas operations are summarized in the table below:

Segment wise results for 2018 `

Sr. No. Particulars Year ended
31st December 2018 31st December 2017

Audited Audited
1 Segment Revenue

33,886
46,789

Total 80,675
360

Net Sales / Income from Operations 80,315
2

3,588
4,443

Total 8,031
Less: 

502
-

7,529
3 Segment Assets

41,158
44,146

Total 85,304
4 Segment Liabilities

13,305
29,110

Total 42,415

SECTION 5
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Synergies with Parents

`

Opportunities

Risks and Concerns

 

and newer products
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Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

Looking Ahead

Cautionary Statement

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations or predictions may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. 
Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations 
include raw material availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, changes in Government 
regulations, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the countries in which the Company conducts business and other 
incidental factors.

SECTION 5
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF 

GOVERNANCE

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 

st

st

th

th

th
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A. Composition of the Board

as on 31st

st

 

 Table 1: Composition of the Board of Directors

Directors Category $ Directors 

Number

Total number 
of Committee 

Memberships of 
Public Companies 

as on 31st 
December, 2018@

Total number of 
Chairmanships 
of Committee of 

Public Companies 
as on 31st 

December, 2018@

Total number of 
Directorships 

of Public 
Companies 
as on 31st 

December, 2018*

Total number of 
Directorships 

of Private 
Companies  
as on 31st 

December, 2018*
NON – EXECUTIVE

st

1 3  1

Barandiaran
1 1

1 1

1 3
1

3 3
1 1

1
EXECUTIVE

3

 

B. Board Procedure
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C. Number of Board Meetings, Attendance of the 
Directors at Meetings of the Board and at the last 
Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Year ended 31st th

th th th  
th th

th

 Table 2: Number of Meetings and Attendance

S r . 
No

Directors No. of Board 
Meetings Attended

Attendance at the 
last AGM

1 Yes

Yes

3 th

3

Yes

Yes

3 Yes

11 th 1

3 Yes

13 Yes
th 1
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D. Meeting of Independent Directors
th

E. Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment

th

th

 Table 3: Brief resume of the Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment-

Mr. Jesus Maria Herrera 
Barandiaran

Mr. Ander Arenaza Alvarez Mr. Romesh Kaul 

sector and has in the past 



4949

Mr. Jesus Maria Herrera 
Barandiaran

Mr. Ander Arenaza Alvarez Mr. Romesh Kaul 

the Directorship 

F. Codes of Conduct

 

st

H. Performance evaluation of Board, its Committees and Directors

SECTION 6
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I. Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors

 Other Initiatives to update the Directors on a continuing 
basis:

 Details of familiarisation program during the year 
under review

th

th

 

J. Risk Management

III. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Audit Committee:

i. Composition, name of Members and Chairperson

th
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ii. Terms of reference

iii. Meetings and attendance

Year ended 31st th

th th th  
th th

 Table 4: Attendance record of Audit Committee

Name of the 
Member

Position Status No. of 
Meetings 
Attended

Director 

Director 
1

Director 

Director 

Director 

th

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

i. Composition, name of Members and Chairperson

ii. Terms of reference

SECTION 6
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iii. Meetings and attendance

st  
th th th

th

th

iv. Performance evaluation of Directors and criteria for 
Independent Directors.

C. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:
st

 

th th

st

th

th

D. Allotment Committee:



5353

E. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
st

th  
th th th

IV. APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

A. Policy on appointment of Directors and Senior 
Managerial Personnel

th

i. Appointment of Directors

ii. Appointment of Senior Managerial Personnel:

B. Policy on remuneration

th 

i. Remuneration to Non-Executive including Independent 
Directors

ii. Remuneration to Executive Directors:

iii. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel’s 
(Excluding Managing Director and Executive Directors) 
(KMPs)

iv. Senior Management Personnel’s and other Employees

SECTION 6
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C. Remuneration / Compensation paid to Directors

 Table 5: Details of remuneration paid/payable to the Directors for the year ended 31st December, 2018

`

Name of the Director Sitting 
Fees*

Salary and 
Perquisites

Other 
Compensation 

/ Fees

Total Contract Period

Director upto 31st

1st st

st

1st st

13th th 

th

 
th

th th

th

th

` `
`

Notes:
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D. Table 6: The Stock options granted to Directors, the period over which accrued and over which it is exercisable are as 
under:

Name of the Director ESOP - 2007 ESOP-2015 No. of 
Ordinary 
(Equity) 

shares held 
as on 31st 
December, 

2018

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
October, 
2007@ 

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
February, 
2008@@ 

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
August, 

2008@@@ 

No. of Options 
granted 
in April, 

2011@@@ @ 

No. of Options 
granted in 
January, 

2012@@@ @@ 

No. of options 
granted on 12th 
December, 2014 

against the 
options held in 

MCL@@@@@@

No. of 
Options 

granted in 
February, 

2016$

th

`

 
` `

`

`

 
`

`

st

`

V. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
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Table 7:

Year Date and Venue Time Special Resolution(s) passed
th

13th

th

st

th

th

a. Postal Ballot
st

b. Resolution proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot

VI. DISCLOSURES

a. Policy for determining ‘material’ Subsidiaries

 

b. Policy on Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party Transactions

c. Disclosure of Transactions with Related Parties

st
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th th

st

`

st

d. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013

e. Whistle Blower policy

f. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of 
Financial Statements

 
st

g. Code for Prevention of Insider-Trading

th

SECTION 6



58

h. Details of non-compliance etc.

i. Compliance

i) Mandatory requirements

ii) Adoption of non-mandatory requirements

 

j. Ethics/Governance Policies

 

k. Shares held by the Non-Executive Directors
st

31st

l. Subsidiary Companies

 

VII. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
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VIII. Management Discussion and Analysis

to (i) of sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46

Particulars Regulation 
Number

Compliance 
Status (Yes/No/

NA)
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
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X. SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
a) 20th Annual General Meeting

th

b) Financial Year
 

31st

st st

st

c) Book Closure

th th

d) Dividend Payment

 
31st

e) Listing of Ordinary (Equity) shares, Debentures on 
Stock Exchanges and Stock Code

on

BSE Limited (BSE)

National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited (NSE)

 1st

g) Stock codes

Particulars Stock Code

h) Stock Price Data

 Table 8: High and low price of Company’s shares for the period January 2018 – December, 2018 on BSE Limited and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited

BSE Limited (BSE) National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE)

` ` ` `
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i) STOCK PERFORMANCE
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j) Registrar and Transfer Agents:

 Karvy Fintech Private Limited*

th

k) Share Transfer System

th

st

l) Distribution of Shareholding

 Table 9: Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st December, 2018

Number of shares 
held

Number of 
Shareholders

% of Shareholders Total shares % of share holding

Total  67,043 100.00  378,780,932 100.00

m) Shareholding pattern as on 31st December, 2018 is as below:

Category of Shareholders Number of equity 
shares held

Percentage (%)
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Category of Shareholders Number of equity 
shares held

Percentage (%)

Trusts

Total  378,780,932 100.00

n) Dematerialisation of shares
st

st

o) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments on Conversion date and which has likely impact 
on equity.

p) Commodity price risk or Foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

 i. Risk management policy of the listed entity with respect to commodities including through hedging

 ii. Exposure of the Company to commodity and commodity risks faced by the entity throughout the year:

Commodity 
Name

Exposure in INR 
towards the particular 
commodity

Exposure in Quantity 
terms towards the 
particular commodity

% of such exposure hedged through 
commodity derivatives

Total

Domestic market International market
OTC Exchange OTC Exchange

q) Plant Locations

 A. Stampings Division

 B. Composites Division
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 C. Forgings Division

 D. Foundry Division

 E. Magnetic Products Division

 F. Gears Division

r) Address for correspondence:

 Karvy Fintech Private Limited*

th

 

s) Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/ 
Unclaimed Suspense Account:

th
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DECLARATION BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UNDER REGULATION 34 (3) READ WITH PARA (D) OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI 
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

st  
31st

Ander Arenaza Álvarez

th

CERTIFICATE

To

The Members of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

st

st

       Sachin Bhagwat
    ACS: 10189

th CP: 6029
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BUSINESS 
RESPONSIBILITY 
REPORT

66
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT – FY 2018
Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company :
2. Name of the Company :
3. Registered address :
4. Website :
5. E-mail id :
6. Financial Year reported : 1st st

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code-wise)

Sr. No. Activity : NIC Code 
1 :

:
3 :

:
:
:

8. List three key products/services that the Company manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)

9. Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company -

:

:

10. Markets served by the Company - Local/ State/ 
National/ International 

:

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

: `
: `
: `
: `  

:

SECTION 7
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SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ 
Companies? 

st

2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in 
the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then 
indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s) 

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors 
etc.) that the Company does business with, participate 
in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then 
indicate the percentage of such entity/entities? [Less 
than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

a) Details of the Director/Director responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies

 Designation

b) Details of the BR head

 Designation
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2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies (Reply in Y/N)

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
Sr. 
No.

Questions

Et
hi

cs
 a

nd
 

Tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

Pr
od

uc
t 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s

R
es

po
ns

iv
en

es
s 

to
 S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s

R
es

pe
ct

 H
um

an
 

R
ig

ht
s

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ol
ic

y 
A

dv
oc

ac
y

Su
pp

or
t 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
gr

ow
th

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

w
ith

 C
us

to
m

er
s

1 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3
Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Y Y Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

The Company has established internal governance structure to ensure implementation of various policies. The Company 
reviews the implementation of polices through our internal audit, risk management process, in-line with established Policies

mechanis
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Sr. No. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
1

3

3. Governance related to BR

a. Indicate the frequency with which the Board of 
Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess 
the BR performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 
3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year:
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b. Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability 
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? 
How frequently it is published?

st

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1 - Businesses should conduct and govern 
themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and 
corruption cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does 
it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs /Others?

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received 

satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, 
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Principle 2 – Businesses should provide goods and services 
that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout 
their life cycle

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design 
has incorporated social or environmental concerns, 
risks and/or opportunities.

2. For each such product, provide the following details 
in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material 
etc.) per unit of product(optional):

 a) Reduction during sourcing/production/ 
distribution achieved since the previous year 
throughout the value chain?

is as under:

  

  

 b) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, 
water) has been achieved since the previous 
year?

3. Does the company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? 
If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced 
sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 
words or so.

4. Has the company taken any steps to procure goods 
and services from local & small producers, including 
communities surrounding their place of work?

 a) If yes, what steps have been taken to improve 
their capacity and capability of local and small 
vendors?

SECTION 7
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5. Does the company have a mechanism to recycle 
products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of 
recycling of products and waste (separately as <5%, 
5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 
50 words or so.

Principle 3 - Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees

1. :
2. :
3. :
4. :
5. : Yes
6. :

7. Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment 

Category No. of 
complaints 

pending at the 
beginning of the 

No. of 
complaints 

No. of 
complaints 

resolved during 

No. of 
complaints 
pending as 

on end of the 

8. What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last year?

Principle 4 -Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who 
are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

1. Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders? 

 Yes

 Yes
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3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the company 
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Principle 5 - Businesses should respect and promote 
human rights

1. Does the policy of the company on human rights 
cover only the company or extend to the Group/Joint 
Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been 

was satisfactorily resolved by the management?

Principle 6 - Business should respect, protect and make 
efforts to restore the environment

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 
company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others.

2. Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to 
address global environmental issues such as climate 
change, global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give 
hyperlink for webpage etc.

 

Energy Savings (Major initiatives)

Water Savings
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Waste Reduction

1. Reclamation of rejected sand core

2. Minimise the water content from paint sludge 
(Mechanical pressing unit installed)

3. Reduction in Residues / sludge by the use of Gunny 
bags.

4. Does the company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y/N

 Yes, the Company has a mechanism to identify 
and assess potential environmental risks across 

Management System. All the Divisions / Locations 
have initiated steps for upgrading system to revised 
standard. Six plants have already upgraded their EMS 

5. Does the company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether 

far in CDM/ Carbon credit related areas. However, 
we are increasing our efforts in sourcing energy 
from renewable sources like Wind & Solar. 13.2% of 
total energy consumed is from renewable sources. 
Under Environment Protection Act and Rules Form-V 
(Environmental statement) is submitted to SPCB by 
respective plants.

6. Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on – 

etc. Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

 Yes. Same is stated under point 2 above.

7. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company 
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for 

 Yes

8. Number of show cause / legal notices received from 
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 
satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year.

 Nil

public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible 
manner

1. Is your company a member of any trade and chamber 
or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones 
that your business deals with:

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above 
associations for the advancement or improvement of 
public good? Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas  
(drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic 
Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, Energy 
security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business 
Principles, Others)

Principle 8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth 
and equitable development

initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to 
Principle 8? If yes details thereof.
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a. Enhancing Employability Quotient - Skill Development 
Program (Mangaon-Lonere area)

 Key deliverables are:

b. Setting up seven “N Star – Life skills Center for Girls”

st 

c. Pathway to excellence – BM Pawar High School, 
Biradwadi, Chakan 

d. Enhancing Road Safety by providing Street Lights at 
Village Kanhe, Maval, Pune and village Mangaon, Tal. 
Mahad, Raigad district.

e. Building Community Toilet Blocks at Village Urse, Pune 
thereby contributing to ‘Swachh Bharat Abhiyan’.

SECTION 7
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f. Project Vidya – Vocational Initiatives development for 
young aspirants.

g. Health Enhancement programme along with the local 
Governance body, at Maval.

2. Are the programmes / projects undertaken through 
in-house team/own foundation/external NGO/
government structures/any other organization? 

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your 
initiative? 

4. What is your company’s direct contribution to 
community development projects- Amount in INR and 
the details of the projects undertaken.

`

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by the 
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so. 

Principle 9 - Businesses should engage with and provide 
value to their customers and consumers in a responsible 
manner

1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer 

Pending Customer complaints of your plant CY-18

Period
 

Registered in this 
period

Open Open 

2. Does the company display product information on 
the product label, over and above what is mandated 
as per local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks(additional 
information) 

the company regarding unfair trade practices, 
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive 

about 50 words or so. 

4. Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ 
consumer satisfaction trends? 
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STANDALONE
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

SECTION 8 7777
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind 
Mahindra CIE Automotive 

Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 

and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 

error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

audit.

the Rules made thereunder including the accounting and 
auditing standards and matters which are required to be 

and the Rules made thereunder.

and other applicable authoritative pronouncements 

Those Standards and pronouncements require that we 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

material misstatement.

evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 

selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

Opinion

required by the Act in the manner so required and give 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 

the Company as we considered appropriate and according 

account.

(including other comprehensive income), the Cash 
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Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 

did not have any derivative contracts as at 
December 31, 2018.

Company during the year ended December 
31, 2018.

  iv. The reporting on disclosure relating to 

2018.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered  
Accountants LLP

Jeetendra Mirchandani

SECTION 2
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference 

section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

criteria established by the Company considering the 

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

Auditors’ Responsibility

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

respects.

and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

company are being made only in accordance with 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 
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procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 

criteria established by the Company considering the 

 For Price Waterhouse Chartered  
Accountants LLP

 Jeetendra Mirchandani
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

assets.

 `

Nature of property Total Number of 
cases

Gross Block as at 
December 31, 2018

Net Block as at 
December 31, 2018

Freehold land 1 25 25
Leasehold land 3 546 473
Building 4 576 495

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered 

applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

Name of the statute Nature of 
dues

Amount  
(`) in Million

Amount paid 
under protest

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

163* 48 CIT (Appeals) to 

1944
192 4

Court
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Name of the statute Nature of 
dues

Amount  
(`) in Million

Amount paid 
under protest

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Finance Act, 1994 61

Appellate Tribunal
384 28

VAT (Appeals) to 
Central Appellate 

Tribunal
Customs Act, 1962 Custom Duty 2

Custom

`

as at the balance sheet date.

Order are not applicable to the Company.

 For Price Waterhouse Chartered  
Accountants LLP

 Jeetendra Mirchandani
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Balance Sheet as at 31St December, 2018
 (`

Note 
No.

As at 31st 
December, 2018

As at 31st 
December, 2017

I ASSETS
1

(a) 5 5,597 5,648
(b) 5 632 253
(c) Goodwill 6 391 391
(d) Other Intangible Assets 7 66 73
(e) Financial Assets

Investments 8 20,062 27,036
342 377

(g) 10 1,013 938
28,103 34,716

2 CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 11 2,436 1,728
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 8 6,788 515
(ii) Trade Receivables 9 3,914 3,293
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 302 192
(iv) Other Bank Balances 12 43 42

(c) Other Current Assets 10 296 439
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 13,779 6,209
TOTAL ASSETS 41,882 40,925

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital 13 3,788 3,784
(b) Other Equity 14 31,628 31,212

35,416 34,996
LIABILITIES

2
(a) 18 499 463
(b) 19 295 217
(c) 22 17 47

811  727
3 CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 1,372 1,014
(ii) 16

and
109 158

small enterprises
2,908 3,001

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 151 117
(b) 18 104 100
(c) 368 107
(d) Other Current Liabilities 22 643 705

5,655  5,202
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 41,882  40,925

For Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Hemant Luthra
Chairman

Ander Alvarez
Director

Jeetendra Mirchandani
Daljit Mirchandani
Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th February, 2019 th February, 2019
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st December, 2018
 (`

Note 
No.

Year Ended 31st 
December, 2018

st 
December, 2017

I Revenue from operations 23 25,293 20,639

II Other Income 24 298 121

III Total Revenue (I+II) 25,591 20,760

IV Expenses
(a) 25 14,224 10,508

(b) 25 (262) (127)

(c) 26 2,847 2,458

(d) Finance costs 27 82 108

(e) 5,7 739 759

37 1,032

(g) 28 5,442 4,806

Total Expenses (IV) 23,072 19,544

V 2,519 1,216

VI Exceptional Items 33 1,286 68

VII 1,233 1,148

VIII Income Tax Expense
(1) 20 831  532

(2) 20 (35)
(3) 20 82 (77)

Total tax expense 878 455

IX 355 693

X Other comprehensive income
A (i)

29 (12) (8)

(ii)
or loss

20
4 3 

(8) (5)

XI Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X) 347 688

XII Earnings per equity share of face value of `10 each :
Basic 32 0.94 1.83

Diluted 32 0.94 1.83

For Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Hemant Luthra
Chairman

Ander Alvarez
Director

Jeetendra Mirchandani
Daljit Mirchandani
Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th February, 2019 th February, 2019
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st December, 2018
 (`

A. Equity Share Capital
Number of Shares Equity share capital

Balance as at January 1, 2017 378,088,265 3,781
Changes in equity share capital during the year

278,977 3
Balance as at December 31, 2017 378,367,242 3,784
Changes in equity share capital during the year

413,690 4
Balance as at December 31, 2018 378,780,932 3,788

B. Other Equity
Reserves and surplus

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

settled 
employee 

reserve

General 
Reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Investment 

Reserve

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Total

As at 1st January, 2017 6,386 15,079 73 6,536 165 2,555 86 (25) 30,855
693 693

(5) (5)

Total Comprehensive Income for 
the year

693 (5) 688

63 33 96
116 (463) (347)

Any other changes 6 (86) (80)
As at 31st December, 2017 6,502 15,142 106 6,536 165 2,791 (30) 31,212

355 355
(8) (8)

Total Comprehensive Income for 
the year

355 (8) 347

92 (43) 49
Any other changes 20 20
As at 31st December, 2018 6,502 15,234 63 6,536 165 3,166 (38) 31,628

For Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Hemant Luthra
Chairman

Ander Alvarez
Director

Jeetendra Mirchandani
Daljit Mirchandani
Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th February, 2019 th February, 2019
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st December, 2018
 (`

Particulars Year ended 31st 
December, 2018

st 
December, 2017

I
1,233 1,148 

82 108 
(55) (8)
(47)

4 16 
(5) 1

739 759 
(8) 64 

125
1,161 25 

14 47 
3,243 2,160 

 Increase in trade and other receivables (624) (617)
(700) (179)

121 275
(144) 232 

28 22 
(92) (166) 

(1,411) (433)
(498) (208)
1,334 1,519 

II
(1,093) (589)
(6,171) (208)

20 9
8 

6,849
 Investment in Subsidiary company (1,161)
 Investment in Associate company

(1,556) (780)
III

57 66 
358 (592) 

Interest paid (82) (108)
333 (634)

IV 111 106
234 128 

V 345 234 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Hemant Luthra
Chairman

Ander Alvarez
Director

Jeetendra Mirchandani
Daljit Mirchandani
Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th February, 2019 th February, 2019
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1. General information

 Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited and activities

based in other countries as well.

components businesses across various products in India and Europe were brought together.

in accordance with their resolution dated February 20, 2019.

2.1 Basis of presentation

2.2 Segment information

the reporting period.
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2.4 Foreign currencies

2.5 Revenue recognition

revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also 

st st July 2017 is 

 Sale of goods

returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

 Interest income

 Dividends

approve the dividend.

2.6 Government grants

equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest 
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2.7 Taxes

 Current income tax

reporting date.

 Deferred tax

 Goods and Services taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

the balance sheet.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

 Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 

 • Buildings 3 to 60 years

 • Vehicles 3 to 8 years
 • Computers 3 to 6 years
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2.9 Intangible assets

indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

2.10 Borrowing costs

borrowing costs.

2.11 Inventories

and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

average basis.

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
st December.

st

appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

2.13 Provisions

 General
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periods.

settlements; and

2.15 Share based payments

2.16 Financial Assets and Financial liabilities

 Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Subsequent measurement

 • Debt instruments at amortised cost
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 Financial liabilities

 Initial recognition and measurement

attributable transaction costs.

 Subsequent measurement

 Loans and borrowings

through the EIR amortisation process.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

2.18 Cash dividend

is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders.

2.19 Trade receivables

2.20 Trade payables

2.21 Borrowings
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through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.

less costs to sell.

2.23 The list of standards issued but not yet effective:

 Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers

st April 2018.

3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

 a. Market risk

   The Company operates internationally and the business is transacted in several currencies. Consequently, the 

material.

31st December, 2018 31st December, 2017
USD EUR Other 

Currencies
USD EUR Other 

Currencies
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 159 71 3 78 124 3
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 159 71 3 78 124 3
Financial Liabilities

35 15 60 10
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 35 15 60 10

   For the year ended 31st December, 2018 and 31st

` `

` `

current reporting period.
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  (ii) Interest rate risk

   Interest rate sensitivity

For the year ended Currency Increase/decrease in 
base points before tax

Variable rate CC 
balance / Term loans

31st December, 2018 +100 (11) 1,065
11 1,065

31st December, 2017 +100 (6) 620
6 620

 b. Liquidity risk

requirements together with the trend in net debt.
st December, 2018 and 31st

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

345 234
6,788 515
2,659 2,601
9,792 3,350
1,372 1,014

151 117
(345) (234)

(6,788) (515)
(5,610) 382

maturities.

Contractual maturities 31st December, 2018 31st December, 2017
Less than 1 year More than 1 year Less than 1 year

Borrowings 1,372 1,014
Trade payables 3,017 3,159

151 117
Total liabilities 4,540 4,290
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st ` st December, 
`

allowing JIT (just in time) supplies to our customers.

 c. Credit Risk

  With respect to customer credit limits, it should be noted that the Company policy is to spread its volumes across customers 

in 2018 are ` `

3.2 Fair Value estimation

 Fair value measurement

most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest 
and best use.

or indirectly observable
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unobservable

3.3 Capital risk management

capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

(5,610) 382

Equity 35,416

(20,062)

34,996

(27,036)

Total Capital Employed 9,744 8,342

Gearing Ratio # 0.05

 

4. Accounting estimates and judgements

 a) Estimated impairment loss on goodwill

the Company’s goodwill at 31st December, 2018.

 b) Estimated fair value of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities associated with a business combination.

assets and liabilities, comparable quoted prices on active markets and other procedures, as disclosed in the relevant 

 c) Income tax
st
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conditions.

5. Property, plant and equipment

 The details and movements in property, plant and equipment are as follows:

 2018:

Description of Assets Land Building Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures, 

tools and 
furnishings

Equipments
Vehicles Computer /  

EDP 
Equipment

Total Capital 
Work in 

Progress

I. Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 1st Jan 2018 430 1,673 5,902 51 32 65 53 8,206 253

Additions 2 60 587 5 9 5 8 676 1,055

(16) (122) (3) (3) (18) (5) (167) (676)

Balance as at 31st December, 2018 432 1,717 6,367 53 38 52 56 8,715 632

II. Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment

Balance as at 1st Jan 2018 (251) (2,214) (31) (17) (15) (30) (2,558)

(83) (597) (5) (5) (13) (9) (712)

Disposals 8 123 2 2 12 5 152

Balance as at 31st December, 2018 (326) (2,688) (34) (20) (16) (34) (3,118)

III. Net carrying amount 432 1,391 3,679 19 18 36 22 5,597 632
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 2017

Description of Assets Land Building Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures, 

tools and 
furnishings

Equipment
Vehicles Computer 

/ EDP 
Equipment

Total Capital 
work in 

Progress

I. Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1st Jan 2017 365 1,294 4,491 35 20 45 34 6,284 61
Additions 1 93 287 1 5 27 6 420 612

64 290 1,199 15 8 7 16 1,599

(4) (75) (1) (14) (3) (97) (420)

Balance as at 31st December, 2017 430 1,673 5,902 51 32 65 53 8,206 253
II. Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment
Balance as at 1st Jan 2017 (126) (1,040) (14) (8) (12) (12) (1,212)

(51) (614) (10) (6) (2) (12) (695)

(77) (633) (7) (4) (8) (9) (738)

Disposals 3 73 1 7 3 87

Balance as at 31st December, 2017 (251) (2,214) (31) (17) (15) (30) (2,558)
III. Net carrying amount 430 1,422 3,688 20 15 50 23 5,648 253

6. Goodwill

st

31st  
December, 2018

Discount Rate 13%

% of revenue

2018

15%

each year.

on the projections, less the growth rate taken into account.
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7. Other Intangible assets

 2018:

Description of Assets Technical 
Knowhow

Computer 
Software

Development 
Cost

Total

I. Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1st January 2018 22 55 55 132
Additions 1 19 20
Disposals
Balance as at 31st December, 2018 23 74 55 152

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as at 1st January 2018 (15) (42) (2) (59)

(6) (9) (12) (27)
Disposal
Balance as at 31st December, 2018 (21) (51) (14) (86)

III. Net carrying amount 2 23 41 66

 2017:

Description of Assets Technical 
Knowhow

Computer 
Software

Development 
Cost

Total

I. Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1st January 2017 22 39 61

17 55 72
Additions 1 1
Disposals (2) (2)
Balance as at 31st December, 2017 22 55 55 132

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as at 1st January 2017 (8) (18) (26)

(14) (14)
(7) (12) (2) (21)

Disposal 2 2
Balance as at 31st December, 2017 (15) (42) (2) (59)

III. Net carrying amount 7 13 53 73
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8. Investments

Particulars As at 31st December, 2018 As at 31st December, 2017

No of 
Shares/Units

Amounts 
Current

 Amounts 
Non Current

 Amounts 
Current Current

A  

Subsidiary Companies
Stokes Group Limited 15,465,310 902

5,500 7,034 5,500 7,034

1,171,207 13,028 1,171,207 13,028

5,000,000 6,974

Associate Company
30,000

Others
The Saraswat Cooperative Bank Limited 2,550 2,550

Subtotal (A) 20,062 27,938
B

320,977 653 145,699 276

3,515,982 953 944,717 239

96,317 253
49,242,616 506

27,379 8
C

250 266
50 532

500 537
1,000 1,057

500 535
1,000 497
1,000 495

ICICI Securities Limited 1,000 496
Subtotal (B + C) 6,788 515

D

Stokes Group Limited 138,329,310 2,063
Subtotal (D) 2,063
Total (A+B+C+D) 8,851 20,062 515 27,938

(2,063) (902)

Total investments 6,788 20,062 515 27,036
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`

`

th

st July, 2017, the appointed date as per the Scheme.

9. Trade Receivables

Trade receivables 31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

3,914 3,293
82 78

(82) (78)
3,914 3,293

2,243 1,591
1,671 1,702
3,914 3,293

agreement is presented as borrowing.

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

16 46
16 46

10. Other Assets

31st December, 2018 31st December, 2017
Current Current

(a) Capital advances 85 32
(b) Security Deposits 99 74
(c) Balances with government authorities 140 171
(d) Other advances 156 829 268 832

296 1,013 439 938
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11. Inventories

31st  
December, 2018

 31st  
December, 2017

(a) Raw materials 799 365
(b) 701 613
(c) 535 361
(d) Stores and spares 282 244
(e) Loose Tools 119 145

Total Inventories 2,436 1,728

(i) Raw materials 2 18
(ii) 141 69

143 87

` st

` `

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents

 31st  
December, 2018

 31st  
December, 2017

Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balances with banks 274 114
(b) 27 77
(c) Cash in hand 1 1
Total Cash and cash equivalents 302 192
Other Bank Balances
(a) Earmarked balances with banks 1 1
(b)

On margin accounts 42 41
Total Other Bank balances 43 42
Total cash, cash equivalents and other bank balances 345 234

13. Equity Share capital

31st December, 2018 31st December, 2017

No. of shares Amount Amount

` 513,192,621 5,132 513,192,621 5,132

` 
5 5

` 378,781,877 3,788 378,368,187  3,784

` 378,780,932^ 3,788 378,367,242^ 3,784
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 Terms and rights attached to Equity Shares

`

entitled to one vote.

Particulars Opening 
Balance

Issue of Equity Shares 
on account of Employee 

Stock Option Scheme

Closing 
Balance

Equity Shares with voting rights
st December, 2018 No. of Shares 378,367,242 413,690 378,780,932

Amount 3,784 4 3,788
st December, 2017 378,088,265 278,977 378,367,242

Amount 3,781 3 3,784
th Oct 

allotted the same to the shareholders. Based on the swap ratio the Company has issued 945 equity shares and not allotted the 
same and the same has been kept in abeyance.

Equity Shares  
with Voting rights

As at 31st December, 2018
213,194,432

As at 31st December, 2017
194,267,537

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 31st December, 2018 31st December, 2017
Number of 

shares held
% holding in 
that class of 

shares
shares held

shares
Equity shares with voting rights

213,194,432 56.28% 194,267,537
43,344,512 11.44% 65,271,407

14. Other Equity

 (i) Securities premium reserve

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

Opening balance 15,142 15,079
92 63

Closing balance 15,234 15,142
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31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

Opening balance 106 73
14 63

(20) (4)
(37) (26)

Closing Balance 63 106

 (iii) Retained earnings

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

Opening Balance 2,761 2,530

355 693
(463)

Any other changes 20 6

(8) (5)
Closing balance 3,128 2,761

 (iv) Capital reserves

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

Opening Balance 6,502 6,386
116

Closing Balance 6,502 6,502

 (v) Capital Redemption reserve

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

165 165

 (vi) General Reserve

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

6,536 6,536

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

Opening Balance 86
(86)

Closing Balance
Grand Total 31,628 31,212
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 Nature and purpose of Reserves

 Securities premium reserve

 Capital reserve

 General reserve

th December, 2007, is 

 Capital redemption reserve

15. Borrowings

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

A. Secured Borrowings
(a) Loans repayable on demand

From Banks 348
Total Secured Borrowings 348

B.
(a) 1,065 620
(b) From Banks 307 46

1,372 666
Total Current Borrowings 1,372 1,014
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Current 
borrowings

Balance as on 31st December, 2017

(including accrued interest)

(1,015)

(358)
(68)

Interest paid 69
Balance as on 31st December, 2018 (1,372)

 Assets pledged as security

 The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current borrowings and bank guarantees are:

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

Current assets
Inventories 11 2,436 1,728
Financial assets

9 3,914 3,293
8 6,788 515

12 302 192
12 43 42

Other Current Assets 10 296 439
Total assets pledged as security 13,799 6,209

16. Trade Payables

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

109 158
2,853 2,874

Acceptances 55 127
3,017 3,159

418 281
2,599 2,878

outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises, are given below;

Particulars 31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

102 157
Interest due and remaining unpaid 7 1

301 133
(1)

appointed day
6 2

1



Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2018
(` in Million)

109109SECTION 8

17. Other Financial Liabilities

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

(a) Interest accrued 1
(b)
(c) 1 1
(d) 150 115

151 117

 

18. Provisions

31st December, 2018 31st December, 2017
Current Current

(a) 75 50 72 25
(b) 26 187 24 173
(c) 3 4 3
(d) 262 262

104 499 100 463

19. Deferred Taxes

2018 Opening 
Balance

Recognised 

and Loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Adjustment 
on account 
of merger 
(Note 8.4)

Closing 
Balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
liabilities

assets 455 65 520
Subtotal (A) 455 65   520
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
assets

43 6 49
195 (23) 4 176

Subtotal (B) 238 (17) 4 225
(217) (82) 4 (295)

2017 Opening 
Balance

Recognised 

Loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Adjustment 
on account 

Closing 
Balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
liabilities

assets 443 (50) 62 455
Subtotal (A) 443 (50) 62 455
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
assets

33 10 43
169 17 3 6 195

Subtotal (B) 202 27 3 6 238
(241) 77 3 (56) (217)
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20. Corporate income tax expense

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

831 532
(35)

82 (77)
878 455

 (ii) 

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

4 3

4 3

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

1,233 1,148

431 397
449

15 43
(35)

Other Items 18 15
878 455

21. Fair Value Measurements

Financial instruments by category
31st December, 2018 31st December, 2017

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 
Cost

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 
Cost

Financial assets
1. Current Assets
Investments 2,373 4,415  515
Trade Receivables 3,914 3,293
Cash and Cash Equivalents 302 192
Other Bank balances   43 42

2,373  8,674 515 3,527
Financial liabilities
1. Current Liabilities
Borrowings 1,372 1,014

3,017 3,159
Other Financial Liabilities 151 117

4,540 4,290
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Financial instrument carried at amortized cost

amount.

Fair Value Hierarchy
Particulars 31st December, 2018 31st December, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

2,373 515
Total 2,373 515

22. Other Liabilities

31st December, 2018 31st December, 2017
Current Current

(a) Government grant 18 12 30 47
145 161

(c) Employee Related 348 356
(d) Others 132 5 158

643 17 705 47

23. Revenue from Operations

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

23,067 19,366
58 40

2,168 1,233
25,293 20,639

24. Other Income

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

(a) Interest Income
On Financial Assets at amortised cost 106 49

(b) 47 3
(c) Government Grants 11 11
(d) 134 58

298 121

25. Cost of materials consumed:

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

Opening stock 365 250
14,658 10,623
15,023 10,873

(799) (365)
14,224 10,508
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31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

Finished goods 535 361
Work in progress 701 613

1,236 974

Finished goods 361 324
Work in progress 613 408

974 732
(262) (127)

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

(a) Salaries and wages, including bonus 2,508 2,196
(b) 163 125
(c) 176 137

2,847 2,458

27. Finance costs

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

(a) 68 61
(b) Finance Charges 14 47

82 108

28. Other expenses

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

(a) Tools & Stores consumed 1,091 976
(b) 1,594 1,374
(c) Repairs and maintenance 603 493
(d) Freight outward 368 308
(e) 672 605

16 14

(g)
(i) 7 7
(ii) 1 1
(iii) Other services 1 1

(h) 1,089 1,027
5,442 4,806
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` `

  (i) Gratuity

  (ii) Voluntary Retirement Scheme

  (iii) Compensated absences

 (c) Risks

  (i) Asset Volatility

  (ii) Changes in Bond Yields
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2018 2017 2018 2017
Amounts recognised in comprehensive income 

Service Cost
Current Service Cost 41 22

settlements 7
6 6  1

54 34 1

liability

(6) (7)

adjustments 18 15

Demographic assumptions

in other comprehensive income 12 8
Total 66 42 1
I. Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the 

Balance Sheet as at 31st December

as at 31st December (403) (350) (3) (7)
 

31st December 278  253
(125) (97) (3) (7)

(75) (72) (3) (4)
(50) (25)  (3)

the company

II. Change in the obligation during the 
year ended 31st December

350  312 7 14
16

Account
41  22

7
25  22 1

3. Recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income
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2018 2017 2018 2017

 i. Demographic Assumptions
 ii. Financial Assumptions (5)  (7)

16 18
(31)  (33) (4)  (8)

403  350 3 7
III. Change in fair value of assets during 

the year ended 31st December

253 223
16

Account
19 16

3. Recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income

 i. Demographic Assumptions
 ii. Financial Assumptions 1

(2) 3
4. Contributions by employer (including 

38 28
(31) (33)

year 278 253
IV. The Major categories of plan assets
 Funds managed by Insurer 278 253

100%
V. Actuarial assumptions
1. Discount rate 7.4% to 7.9% 7.9%

7.4% to 7.7%
3. Attrition rate 2% to 17%
4. Salary Escalation 7% to 10%

end
12 to 15 years

Change
31st  

December, 2018
31st  

December, 2017
Decrease in Discount rate 10%
Increase in Discount rate 8%
Decrease in Salary increment 8%
Increase in Salary increment 9%
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30. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
1. 375 375
2. 155 194
3. 61 59
4. 382 220
5. Stamp Duty, Government Cess and others 213 64
6. Water Charges 325 325
7.

5 31
(b) Commitment

i.
recognised as liabilities. 197 209

 Water Charges:

`
` `

nd July, 2012, has 

`
`

`

` `

renegotiated.

  Operating leases are payable as follows:

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

Within one year 19 7
117 13
26

  Rental expense relating to operating leases

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

44 30
44 30
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31. Related Party Transactions

  1 Stokes Group Limited

  2 Stokes Forgings Limited

  3 Stokes Forgings Dudley Ltd.

th September, 2017)
th June, 2017)

th June, 2017)
th June, 2017)

th June, 2017)

  1 th

 where transactions have taken place during 
the period

an Associate.)
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 (e) 

  Fellow Subsidiaries

  1 Gameko FabricaciÓn de Components, S.A.

  Subsidiary Companies of the investing company (MVML) in respect of which the Company is an Associate

  Fellow Subsidiary Companies of the investing company (MVML)

th October, 2017)

  10 Bristlecone Limited

No. Name Designation
1 Chairman (upto 31st

st April, 2018)
2 Director (upto 16th October, 2018)
3 Director
4
5 Director
6 Director
7 Director (upto 3rd October, 2017)
8 Director
9 Director
10 Director
11 Director
12 Director
13 Director (upto 20th February, 2018)
14 Director
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No. Name Designation
15 th October, 2018) and

16
17
18

 (g) Transactions with Related parties during the period

For the year ended Entities having 

Company

Subsidiaries 
(Including 

Fellow 
subsidiaries)

Subsidiaries of 
Entities having 

over Company

Associate 
Company

31st December,2018 15,347 356 342 66
31st December, 2017 12,475 193 306
31st December,2018 24 2,118
31st December, 2017 1,364

other assets
31st December,2018

31st December, 2017 1
31st December,2018
31st December, 2017 18
31st December,2018 123
31st December, 2017 6 93

Rent received 31st December,2018 1
31st December, 2017 1

Rent paid 31st December,2018 42
31st December, 2017 57

Interest paid 31st December,2018 46
31st December, 2017 8

Reimbursements 
received

31st December,2018   
81

31st December, 2017
Reimbursements paid 31st December,2018 14 49

31st December, 2017 32 4
31st December,2018 1,161

31st December, 2017

Investment in Subsidiary 
and Associate

31st December,2018 1,161

31st December, 2017
31st December,2018 6,849
31st December, 2017
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Nature of Balances with 
Related Parties

Balance as on Entities having 

Company

Subsidiaries 
(Including 

Fellow 
subsidiaries)

Subsidiaries of 
Entities having 

over Company

Associate 
Company

Trade payables 31st December, 2018 3 415

31st December, 2017 29 252

Trade receivables 31st December, 2018 2,116 48 79

31st December, 2017 1,501 52 38

Borrowings 31st December, 2018 1,065

31st December, 2017 620

Advances received 31st December, 2018 43

31st December, 2017

Other balances 31st December, 2018 9

31st December, 2017

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

50 96

Share based payments 4 25

21

4 5

Total 79 126

32. Earnings per share

respective periods.

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

` Per Share `

Basic earnings per share 0.94 1.83

Diluted earnings per share 0.94 1.83
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31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

355 693
378,514,871 378,293,423

298,547 440,460
378,813,418 378,733,883

0.94 1.83
0.94 1.83

33. Exceptional Items

 Exceptional Items relating to current year:

amounting to `

`

 Exceptional Items relating to previous year:

2017 in Forgings division.

34. Segment Information

35. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

 The company is required to spend a sum ` `

31st  
December, 2018

31st  
December, 2017

6 2
On the purpose other than above 10 12
Total 16 14

36. 
resolution passed by the shareholders approving the scheme on July 25, 2007, amended by special resolution dated July 29, 

September 15, 2015.

` 
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Opening Balance Forfeited 
during the 

year

Exercised 
during the 

year

Outstanding 
at the end of 

the year

Exercisable at 
the end of the 

year
Date of the Tranche Number of 

Shares
Weighted 

average 
exercise 

price

Number of 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

On 1st April, 2011 160,260  57 12,542  52,216 95,502 95,502
On 20th January, 2012 1,709 44 29  802 878 878
On 22nd February, 2016 961,828 150 131,390 244,005 586,433 390,955
On 12th December, 2016 350,000 150 233,333 116,667

1,473,797  377,294 413,690 682,813 487,335

37. st

st

st December, 2018 and year ended 31st December, 2017 are not comparable.

38. Events occurring after the reporting period

39. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Hemant Luthra
Chairman

Ander Alvarez
Director

Jeetendra Mirchandani
Daljit Mirchandani
Director

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th February, 2019 th February, 2019
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CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

SECTION 9 123123
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

Report on the Consolidated Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS 
Financial Statements

Auditors’ Responsibility

6. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and 

Opinion
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Other Matters

`
`
`

`
to `

`

` `
`

`
`

`

10. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to 
the extent applicable, that:

statements.

the Act.
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companies and associate company 

Price Waterhouse Chartered  
Accountants LLP

Jeetendra Mirchandani
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 10(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report 
of even date to the members of Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited 

December 31, 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

statements.

statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 

Opinion

India.
Price Waterhouse Chartered  

Accountants LLP

Jeetendra Mirchandani
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Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Hemant Luthra Ander Alvarez

Jeetendra Mirchandani
Daljit Mirchandani

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th th

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2018
(`

Note 
No.

As at 31st 
December, 2018

st 

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

6  19,840
 960

7  29,111
 101

Financial Assets
 Investments 9  15 14
 Loans 11  1,387

 2,553
 327

 1,422
55,716

Current Assets
 12,286

Financial Assets
 Investments 9  6,793

 7,414
 Loans 11  31

14  1,084  677
14  43

 527
 1,410

29,588
 524

Total Assets 85,828
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

 3,788
16  39,103

42,891
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

17  11,730
19 - 9

 3,490
 988
 656

16,864
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

17  4,404
 16,838

19  459
 449 196 

 1,206 696 
 2,195

25,551
 522

Total Equity and Liabilities 85,828
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Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Hemant Luthra Ander Alvarez

Jeetendra Mirchandani
Daljit Mirchandani

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th th

for the year ended 31st December, 2018
(`

Note 
No.

Year Ended 31st 
December, 2018

st 

Continuing Operations
Revenue from operations 80,315

76,485
3,830

387
Total Revenue 80,702
Expenses

37,737
(1,421)
13,297

Finance costs 502
2,867

6 -
-

20,192
Total Expenses 73,174

7,528
41 -

7,528
1,899

144
Total tax expense 2,043

5,485
Discontinued Operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (504)

4,981
Other comprehensive income for the year

(53)
17 6

737

Total Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 701
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

5,682
6,186
(504)

`
13.16
14.49
(1.33)
13.15 9.46
14.48
(1.33)

mayur.dm
Highlight

mayur.dm
Highlight

sonali.rana
Highlight
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Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Hemant Luthra Ander Alvarez

Jeetendra Mirchandani
Daljit Mirchandani

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th th

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(`

a. Equity share capital
Number of Shares Equity share capital

Balance at December 31, 2017 378,367,242 3,784

4
378,780,932 3,788

b. Other equity

Reserves and surplus Other Reserves

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Equity-settled 
employee 

reserve

General 
Reserve

Capital 
redemption 

Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve

Actuarial Gain / 
(Loss)

Total

As at 1st

options  96

st

options  49

As at 31st December 2018  7,693  15,234  63  6,028  165  8,265  1,668  (13)  39,103
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Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited
Hemant Luthra Ander Alvarez

Jeetendra Mirchandani
Daljit Mirchandani

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th th

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31st December 2018
(`

Year ended 31st 
December, 2018

st 

I
7,025

 Finance costs 525
(47)
(55)
(13)
(22)
(32)

2,898
-

14
10,293

(1,616)
(2,752)
 2,599

 (1,769)
Income taxes paid (1,444)

 7,080
II

(6,201)
47  97

(4,101)
 66

 Investment in Associate company -*
 (10,189)

III
57  66

4,089
 (525)
 3,621

IV  512
719
 16

V  1,247  719

As at 31st Dec 2018 st

1,204 677
Bank balances 43

1,247 719

statements.
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1. General information
 Mahindra CIE Automotive Group and Background

 Interest in Subsidiaries and Associates

Sr. 
No.

Name of the entity % of Holding  Country of 
Incorporation 31st Dec 2018 31st Dec 2017

1

4

6
7

9 Italy
Spain

11 Spain
Lithuania
Spain

14 India
India

16

17 India

2.1 Basis of presentation

`

2.2 Recent Amendments 
 Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers

st
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2.3 Consolidation principles
st

st

 Consolidation procedure:

2.4 Segment information
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2.5 Business combinations and goodwill



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2018

135135SECTION 9

2.7 Foreign currencies
`

 Transactions and balances

the item.
 Group companies

`

2.8 Revenue recognition
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st st

 Sale of goods

 Interest income

 Dividends

2.9 Government grants

2.10 Taxes
 Current income tax

 Deferred tax
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 Goods and Services Tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

the balance sheet.
2.11 Property, plant and equipment
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2.12 Intangible assets

 Research and development expenses

 Licences

2.13 Borrowing costs

2.14 Leases

 Group as a lessee
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 Group as a lessor

2.15 Inventories

st
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2.17 Provisions
 General

 Warranty provisions

 Restructuring provisions

settlements; and

2.19 Share based payments
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2.20 Financial Assets and Financial liabilities

 Financial assets
 Initial recognition and measurement

 Subsequent measurement

 Financial liabilities
 Initial recognition and measurement

 Subsequent measurement
 Loans and borrowings

2.21 Share Capital

2.22 Cash and cash equivalents

2.23 Cash dividend
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2.24 Trade receivables

2.25 Trade payables

method.
2.26 Borrowings

2.27 Disposal groups and discontinued operations

3. Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

 (a) Market risk
  (i) Foreign Currency Risk:-
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st

` `

` `

  (ii) Interest rate risk

`

` `

 (b) Liquidity risk

st st

As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

1,127 719
1,387
6,793

31
9,338

st ` st `

16,134
459

(1,127)
(1,387)
(6,793)

(31)
7,255

st ` st

`
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 (c) Credit Risk

.

3.2 Fair Value estimation
 Fair value measurement

and best use.

(Refer Note 25).
3.3 Capital risk management
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 2018
7,255

42,891
50,146

0.15
4. Accounting estimates and judgements

 a) Estimated impairment loss on goodwill

st

 b) Estimated fair value of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities associated with a business combination.

 c) Income tax
st
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5. Segment information

. 31st December, 2018* 

India Europe Total  
Segments

Adjustment & 
Eliminations

Consolidated

33,886 46,789 80,675 (360) 80,315
(29,081) (40,697) (69,778) 360 (69,418)

1,217 1,650 2,867 - 2,867

3,588 4,442 8,030 - 8,030
4,805 6,092 10,897 - 10,897

41,158 44,146 85,304 - 85,304
13,305 29,110 42,415 - 42,415

Fixed Asset Addition 1,601 1,786 3,387 - 3,387

 31st December, 2017*

India Europe Total  
Segments

Adjustment & 
Eliminations

Consolidated

Fixed Asset Addition

 

As at 31st  
December 2018

st  

8,030
(502)

(2,043)
5,485

rahul.kadam
Highlight

rahul.kadam
Highlight

rahul.kadam
Highlight
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6. Property, plant and equipment

 2018

Description of Assets Land  Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures 

tools and 
furnishings

Other 
Assets

Total

I. Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1st  2,181  3,726  19,259  2,475  468  28,109

 4
 Disposals

 119
 Balance as at 31st Dec 2018  2,230  4,103  22,438  2,627  527  31,925
II.  Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment
 Balance as at 1st  -  (819)  (6,625)  (1,438)  (138)  (9,020)

 -
 Disposals  -  641

 -  1

 Balance as at 31st Dec 2018  -  (1,072)  (9,268)  (1,517)  (153) (12,010)

III.  Net carrying amount  2,230  3,031  13,095  1,110  374  19,840

 2017

Description of Assets Land  Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and Fixtures 

tools and 
furnishings

Other 
Assets

Total

I.  Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1st

 Additions 1
 Disposals

414

 Balance as at 31st Dec 2017 2,181 3,726 19,259 2,475 468 28,109
II. Accumulated depreciation and 

impairment
 Balance as at 1st

 Disposals

 Balance as at 31st Dec 2017 -  (819)  (6,625)  (1,438)  (138)  (9,020)

III.  Net carrying amount 2,181 2,907 12,559  1,037 330 19,014
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7. Goodwill

As at 31st  
December 2018

st  

Cost
30,229

824
31,053
(1,942)
(1,942)
29,111 28,364

 Impairment testing of goodwill

Cash Generating Units As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

India 10,187
18,924

Total 29,111

st

2018
5.0%-12.9%

% of revenue
2018

13% - 18%
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8. Other Intangible assets

 2018:

Description of Assets Development 
Expenditure

Computer 
Software

Total

I.  Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1st  55  254  309

 Disposals

 Balance as at 31st December 2018  55  255  310
II.  Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1st  (3)  (181)  (184)

 Balance as at 31st December 2018 (14)  (195)  (209)
III.  Net carrying amount  41  60  101

 2017:

Description of Assets Development 
Expenditure

Computer 
Software

Total

I.  Gross Carrying Amount
 Balance as at 1st 48 220 268
 Additions 7 17
 Disposals

9
 Balance as at 31st December 2017 55 254 309
II.  Accumulated depreciation and impairment
 Balance as at 1st (3) (110) (113)

7

 Balance as at 31st December 2017 (3) (181) (184)
III.  Net carrying amount 52 73 125
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9. Investments

 As at 31st December 2018 st

No. of 
Units

Amounts 
Current

Amounts 
Non-

Current

Amounts Amounts 

A. Investment in Equity Instruments 
(Unquoted - fully paid up)
Associate Company

30000 - - 
ó 68000 - 5

Others 

Limited 2550 - - 

B Investments in Mutual Funds 
(Unquoted)

320,977 653 -
3,515,982 953 -

96,317 253 -
49,242,616 506 -

27,379 8 -

C Investment in Commercial Papers & 
Bonds (Unquoted)

250 266 -
50 532 -

500 537 -
1,000 1,057 -

500 535 -
Axis Finance Limited 1,000 497 -

1,000 495 -
1,000 496 -

D Others  5 10 9
- - -
- 6,793 15 14
- 6,793 15 14
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10. Trade receivables

As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

-
7,414

175
 (175)
 7,414

2,306
 5,108
 7,414

11. Loans

As at 31st December 2018 st

Current Non- Current

- -
31 1,387
31 1,387

12. Other Assets

 As at 31st December 2018 st

Current Non- Current
- 307  7

- 99
138 581  141
525 40

43 -
117 -

 587  395
 1,410 1,422

13. Inventories

 As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

3,916
4,552
3,033

360
 425

 12,286

2
 311
 313
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` st

` `

14. Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

1,029

27

27

47

 77
1

Total Cash and cash equivalent  1,084  677

Other Bank Balances
1  1

42  41
 43

Total cash, cash equivalents and bank balances  1,127  719

15. Equity Share capital

No. of shares 31st December, 2018 st

No. of shares Amount. Amount
Authorised:

` 513,192,621 5,132
`

each
5 -*

Issued:
` 378,781,877 3,788

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
` 378,780,932^ 3,788

 Terms and rights attached to Equity shares

`

entitled to one vote.

Particulars Opening Balance Employee Stock 
Options

Closing Balance

st 378,367,242 413,690 378,780,932
Amount 3,784 4 3,788

st

Amount
th Oct 
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same and the same has been kept in abeyance.

Equity Shares with 
Voting rights

st

st

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 31st December 2018 st

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
in that class 

of shares

213,194,432 56.28%

43,344,512 11.44%

16. Other Equity

As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

 Opening balance  15,142
 92

 15,234

 Opening balance  106
14

 (20)
 (37)

 63

 Opening Balance  3,307

 4,981

 (36)
 8,252



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st December, 2018
(` in Million)

154

As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

 Opening Balance 7,693
-

7,693

165

6,028

 Opening Balance  931
 737

 1,668
Grand total 39,103

 Nature and purpose of Reserves

 Securities premium reserve

 Capital reserve

st

th

 General reserve

 Capital redemption reserve
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 Other reserves – Foreign currency translation reserve

17. Borrowings 

Non-current borrowings Rate of Interest 
% p.a.

 Maturity As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

A.  Secured borrowings:*

1,593
Total secured borrowings  1,593
B.  Unsecured Borrowings at amortised 

Cost
 10,137

Total unsecured Borrowings  10,137
Total non-current borrowings  11,730

Current Borrowings
A.  Secured Borrowings*

 2,949
Total Secured Borrowings  2,949
B.  Unsecured Borrowings

 1,221
 234

Total Unsecured Borrowings  1,455
Total Current Borrowings  4,404
Total borrowings  16,134

with multiple entities.

As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

1,593
10,137

-
 11,730
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 Borrowing Reconciliation:

Current 
borrowings

Non-current 
borrowings

Net Borrowing

Opening balance as on 31st December 2017

76
441

Closing balance as on 31st December 2018

 Assets Pledged as securities

 The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current borrowings and bank guarantees are:

31st  
December, 2018

st  

Current assets
2,436

Financial assets
3,914

9 6,788
14 302
14 43

296
Total assets pledged as security 13,799

18. Trade payables

As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

138
16,645

Acceptances  55
 16,838

 501
16,337
 16,838

As at 31st 
December 2018

st 

Non-Current
-  9
 -  9

Current
459
 459
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20. Provisions

As at 31st December 2018 st

Current Non- Current

207 2,440

 242 1,050  96
Total Provisions  449  3,490  196

As at 31st December 2018 st

Current Non- Current
75 74

103 1,957
222

26 187
 3 -  4

Total 207 2,440

Other 
Provisions

Balance at 1st 971

st

st

`
`

` `
`

Details of movement in other provisions current Other 
Provisions

Balance at 1st

 96
 146

Balance at 31 December 2018  242
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21. Other liabilities

As at 31st December 2018 st

Current Non-Current
136 -
567 -

1,366 -
126 309

- 347
 2,195  656

22. Discontinued operations

Assets and liabilities held for sale As at 31st 
December 2018

 97
 208

Financial Assets  -
 93

 120
 6

 524

 9

 135
 351

 27
 522

31st  
December, 2018

st  

 693
 25

Revenue from operations  718
 - 1

Total Revenue  718
Expenses

 319
 (76)

 *354
 Finance costs  23

 31
 *571

Total Expenses  1,222

Loss before tax (504)
-

Loss for the year from discontinued operations  (504)

`
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31st  
December, 2018

st  

(235)
26

273
64

23. Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets -Tax credits Tax losses Tax credits 
R&D, training

Other Total

Balance as on 1st January 2017  1,114  313  132  1,559

Balance as on 31st December 2017  1,088  297  49  1,434
 69

 44
Balance as on 31st December 2018  1,201  192  -  1,393

Deferred tax assets – Others Provisions Others Total
Balance as on 1st January 2017  754  321  1,075

 117
 16

Balance as on 31st December 2017  938  182  1,120

 4  4

Balance as on 31st December 2018  1,020  140  1,160

Deferred tax liabilities Depreciation and 
amortisation

Grants Others Total

Balance as on 1st January 2017  529  (4)  443  968

Balance as on 31st December 2017  940  (16)  -  924

 7
 9

Balance as on 31st December 2018  753  (10)  245  988
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st

As at 31st December 2018 st

Tax losses Others
1,015 -

Spain - 192
Italy 122 -  164

64 -
India -  -  49

 1,201  192

` ` 

24. Corporate income tax expense

Year ended 31st 
December 2018

st 

1,899

144
Total income tax expense on continuing operations 2,043

Year ended 31st 
December 2018

st 

 17 6
17 6

Year ended 31st 
December 2018

st 

7,024
2,454
(166)

(40)
20  94

(381)

176

(48)

(35)
13

 2,043
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25. Fair Value Measurements

Financial instruments by category  As at 31st December 2018 st

FVPL FVOCI Amortised 
Cost

Financial assets
1.  Non-Current Assets
 Investments  -  -  15  14
 Loans  -  -  1,387
2.  Current Assets
 Investments  2,373  -  4,420

 -  -  7,414
 Loans  -  -  31

 -  -  1,084  677
 -  -  43

 2,373  -  14,394

Financial liabilities
Non-current Liabilities

- -  11,730
 -  -  -  9

Current Liabilities
 -  -  4,404
 -  -  16,838
 -  -  459
 -  -  33,431

Fair Value Hierarchy As at 31st December 2018 st

Financial assets  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Level 1
 2,373 - -

Total  2,373  -  -

26. Other Income:

Year ended 31st 
December 2018

st 

98
47
32

 210  171
 387
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27. Cost of materials consumed

Year ended 31st 
December 2018

st 

Opening stock  1,798
39,855
 41,653
(3,916)
 37,737

Year ended 31st 
December 2018

st 

11,056
216

2,025
 13,297

29. Finance costs

Year ended 31st 
December 2018

st 

441
 61  149

 502

30. Other expenses

Year ended 31st 
December 2018

st 

3,630
3,709
2,186
6,257

30  19

10
1  1
1  1

4,368
 20,192

` `

  (i) Gratuity
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  (ii) Voluntary Retirement Scheme

  (iii) Compensated absences

 (c) Risks

  (i) Asset Volatility

  (ii) Changes in Bond Yields;

1. Provisions for Gratuity, Voluntary retirement Scheme (VRS) and Pensions: -

Funded Plan Unfunded Plans
Gratuity VRS Pension

2018 2018 2018

54 - 62
10 - -
8 6 - 1 32

72 - 1 94

assumptions
1 29

adjustments
22 -

adjustments
1

24 - 29

Total 96 - 1 123
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Funded Plan Unfunded Plans
Gratuity VRS Pension

2018 2018 2018
I.  Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance 

Sheet as at 31st December

st
(569) (3) (2,060)

st 420 - -
(149) (3) (2,060)

(75) (3) (103)
(74) - (1,957)

II.  Change in the obligation during the year ended 
31st December

480 7 14 1,963

16 -

Account
54 - 62
10 - -
34 - 1 32

1 - -
   ii.  Financial Assumptions 2 - 29

20 - -
(32) (4) (107)

opening
- 81

569 3 7 2,060

III.  Change in fair value of assets during the year 
ended 31st December

383 - -

- 16 - -

Account
26 16 - -

1 - -
(2) - -
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Funded Plan Unfunded Plans
Gratuity VRS Pension

2018 2018 2018
44 - -

(32) - -
420 - -

IV.  The Major categories of plan assets

420

100%
V.  Actuarial assumptions

7.40% to 
7.9%

7.90% 1.45%

7.4% to 
7.7%

- -

2% to 
17%

- -

7.0% to 
10%

- 1% to 
2.3%

India Germany

Women

India Germany
Variation in 
Hypothesis

Increase in 
Hypothesis

Decrease in 
Hypothesis

Variation in 
Hypothesis

Increase in 
Hypothesis

Decrease in 
Hypothesis

Year ended 2018
259

5 4
(1)

(50)
9 14

222
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32. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

31st  
December, 2018

st  

448
160

61
382
213 64
325

1 1
5

151

968

 Water Charges:

`
` `

nd

`
`

`

` `

33. Related Party Transactions

1

4
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6
7

9

11

14

16

17

1.

Subsidiary Companies of the investing company (MVML) in respect of which the Company is an Associate
1

4

6
7

Fellow Subsidiary Companies of the investing company (MVML)
1

4

6
7 th

9

1 th

ó
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No. Name Designation
1 st

st

4

6

th

7

9

11

th

14
th

16
17
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Details of Remuneration 31st  
December, 2018

st  

50 96
4

21
4

Total 79

34.  Leasing Disclosures

2018
Operating Lease

239
842 699

1,224
2,305

35.  Earnings per share

2018
` `

Basic earnings per share 13.16
14.49

Diluted Earnings per share 13.15 9.46

2018
 4,981
 5,485
 (504)

378,514,871
 13.16
 14.49
 (1.33)
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2018
 4,981
5,485
(504)

378,514,871
 298,547

 378,813,418
 13.15  9.46
 14.48
 (1.33)

36. Other information

2018

9

6

1

37. 

`

Date of the Tranche Opening Balance Forfeited 
during the 

year

Exercised 
during the 

year

Outstanding 
at the end of 

the year

Exercisable 
at the end 
of the year

Number of 
Shares

Weighted 
average 

exercise price

Number of 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

On 1st

th 44
nd

th

 1,473,797  377,294  413,690 682,813  487,335
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39. st

st

st st

40. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

` `

31st  
December, 2018

st  

14
16 17

Total 30 19

41.  Exceptional Items

42. Events occurring after reporting period

43. 

Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP

Mahindra CIE Automotive Limited

Hemant Luthra Ander Alvarez

Jeetendra Mirchandani

Daljit Mirchandani

K. Jayaprakash Krishnan Shankar

th th
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